UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2014

OR

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Commission File Number: 1-14569

PLAINS ALL AMERICAN PIPELINE, L.P.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

76-0582150 (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

333 Clay Street, Suite 1600, Houston, Texas (Address of principal executive offices)

77002 (Zip Code)

(713) 646-4100

(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. x Yes o No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). x Yes o No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer x

Accelerated filer o

Non-accelerated filer o (Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Smaller reporting company o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). o Yes x No

As of October 31, 2014, there were 372,033,831 Common Units outstanding.

Table of Contents

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION Item 1. UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets: As of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 3 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations: For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 4 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income: For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 5 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss): For the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 5 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows: For the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 6 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in Partners' Capital: For the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 7 Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements: 1. Organization and Basis of Consolidation and Presentation 8 2. Recent Accounting Pronouncements 9 9 Accounts Receivable 10 4. Inventory, Linefill and Base Gas and Long-term Inventory 5. Goodwill 11 6. Debt 11 7. Net Income Per Limited Partner Unit 12 8. Partners' Capital and Distributions 14 9. Equity-Indexed Compensation Plans 14 10. Derivatives and Risk Management Activities 16 11. Commitments and Contingencies 23 12. Operating Segments 24 13. Related Party Transactions 26 14. Subsequent Events 27 Item 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 28 Item 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 46 **Item 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES** 47 PART II. OTHER INFORMATION **Item 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS** 49 Item 1A. RISK FACTORS 49 Item 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS 49 **Item 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES** 49 Item 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES 49 Item 5. OTHER INFORMATION 49 Item 6. EXHIBITS 49 **SIGNATURES** 50 2

Table of Contents

Other, net

Total assets

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PLAINS ALL AMERICAN PIPELINE, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (in millions, except unit data)

September 30, December 31, 2014 (unaudited) **ASSETS CURRENT ASSETS** \$ Cash and cash equivalents \$ 34 41 Trade accounts receivable and other receivables, net 3,522 3,638 Inventory 1,314 1,065 Other current assets 290 220 Total current assets 5,160 4,964 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 13,816 12,473 Accumulated depreciation (1,851)(1,654)Property and equipment, net 11,965 10,819 **OTHER ASSETS** 2,481 2,503 Goodwill Linefill and base gas 903 798 270 251 Long-term inventory Investments in unconsolidated entities 582 485

476

\$

21.837

\$

540

20.360

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' CAPITAL

CURRENT LIABILITIES		
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	\$ 4,169	\$ 3,983
Short-term debt	976	1,113
Other current liabilities	423	315
Total current liabilities	 5,568	5,411
		,
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES		
Senior notes, net of unamortized discount of \$16 and \$15, respectively	7,609	6,710
Long-term debt under credit facilities and other	4	5
Other long-term liabilities and deferred credits	526	531
Total long-term liabilities	 8,139	7,246
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 11)		
PARTNERS' CAPITAL		
Common unitholders (371,468,177 and 359,133,200 units outstanding, respectively)	7,740	7,349
General partner	331	295
Total partners' capital excluding noncontrolling interests	8,071	 7,644
Noncontrolling interests	59	59
Total partners' capital	 8,130	7,703
Total liabilities and partners' capital	\$ 21,837	\$ 20,360

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

3

Table of Contents

PLAINS ALL AMERICAN PIPELINE, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (in millions, except per unit data)

	Three Mor Septem		ded	Nine Months Ended September 30,				
	 2014	iber 50,	2013		2014	DCI JU,	2013	
	 (unau	dited)			(unau	dited)		
REVENUES	40.700	_	40.000	_	22.000	_	20 - 10	
Supply and Logistics segment revenues	\$ 10,788	\$	10,386	\$	32,988	\$	30,542	
Transportation segment revenues	198		179		574		517	
Facilities segment revenues	 141		138		443		558	
Total revenues	11,127		10,703		34,005		31,617	
COSTS AND EXPENSES								
Purchases and related costs	10,166		9,909		31,116		28,733	
Field operating costs	382		326		1,078		1,010	
General and administrative expenses	78		79		257		276	
Depreciation and amortization	97		93		293		265	
Total costs and expenses	 10,723		10,407		32,744		30,284	
OPERATING INCOME	404		296		1,261		1,333	
OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSE)								
Equity earnings in unconsolidated entities	29		19		73		42	
Interest expense (net of capitalized interest of \$12, \$11, \$33 and \$30,								
respectively)	(85)		(72)		(246)		(224)	
Other income/(expense), net	 (4)		3		(2)		2	
INCOME BEFORE TAX	344		246		1,086		1,153	
Current income tax expense	(10)		(17)		(62)		(69)	
Deferred income tax benefit/(expense)	 (10)		8		(28)		(10)	
NET INCOME	324		237		996		1,074	
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests	(1)		(6)		(2)		(22)	
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO PAA	\$ 323	\$	231	\$	994	\$	1,052	
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO PAA:								
LIMITED PARTNERS	\$ 195	\$	133	\$	630	\$	764	
	\$	\$		\$		\$		
GENERAL PARTNER	\$ 128	\$	98	\$	364	\$	288	
BASIC NET INCOME PER LIMITED PARTNER UNIT	\$ 0.52	\$	0.38	\$	1.71	\$	2.23	
DILUTED NET INCOME PER LIMITED PARTNER UNIT	\$ 0.52	\$	0.38	\$	1.70	\$	2.22	

BASIC WEIGHTED AVERAGE LIMITED PARTNER UNITS OUTSTANDING	370	343	365	340
DILUTED WEIGHTED AVERAGE LIMITED PARTNER UNITS OUTSTANDING	371	345	367	342

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

4

Table of Contents

PLAINS ALL AMERICAN PIPELINE, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (in millions)

	Three Months Ended September 30,					Nine Months Ended September 30,			
		2014		2013		2014		2013	
		(unau	dited)			(unau	dited)		
Net income	\$	324	\$	237	\$	996	\$	1,074	
Other comprehensive income/(loss)		(167)		39		(211)		(99)	
Comprehensive income		157		276		785		975	
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests		(1)		(7)		(2)		(27)	
Comprehensive income attributable to PAA	\$	156	\$	269	\$	783	\$	948	

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

PLAINS ALL AMERICAN PIPELINE, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS) (in millions)

Derivative

Translation

	Instruments			Adjustments		Total
				(unaudited)		
Balance at December 31, 2013	\$	(77)	\$	(20)	\$	(97)
Reclassification adjustments		16		_		16
Deferred loss on cash flow hedges, net of tax		(57)		_		(57)
Currency translation adjustments		_		(170)		(170)
Total period activity		(41)		(170)		(211)
Balance at September 30, 2014	\$	(118)	\$	(190)	\$	(308)
			_			
Zutance at Suptember 30, 2011						
		Derivative		Translation		
		Derivative Instruments		Adjustments		Total
Balance at December 31, 2012	\$		\$		\$	Total 80
	\$	Instruments	\$	Adjustments (unaudited)	\$	
Balance at December 31, 2012	\$	Instruments (120)	\$	Adjustments (unaudited)	\$	80
	\$	Instruments	\$	Adjustments (unaudited)	\$	
Balance at December 31, 2012 Reclassification adjustments	\$	(120) (124)	<u>\$</u>	Adjustments (unaudited)	<u>\$</u>	80 (124)
Balance at December 31, 2012 Reclassification adjustments Deferred gain on cash flow hedges, net of tax	\$	(120) (124)	\$	Adjustments (unaudited) 200 — — —	\$	(124) 140
Balance at December 31, 2012 Reclassification adjustments Deferred gain on cash flow hedges, net of tax Currency translation adjustments	\$	(120) (124) 140 —	\$	Adjustments (unaudited) 200 — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —	\$	(124) 140 (115)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

5

Table of Contents

PLAINS ALL AMERICAN PIPELINE, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (in millions)

	Nine Months Ended September 30,					
	2014 2013					
		(unau	dited)			
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES						
Net income	\$	996	\$	1,074		
Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities:						
Depreciation and amortization		293		265		
Equity-indexed compensation expense		90		96		
Inventory valuation adjustments		37		7		

Deferred income tax expense	28	10
Gain on sales of linefill and base gas	(8)	(5)
(Gain)/loss on foreign currency revaluation	10	(6)
Settlement of terminated interest rate hedging instruments	(7)	8
Equity earnings in unconsolidated entities, net of distributions	1	(7)
Other	10	_
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions	(172)	152
Net cash provided by operating activities	1,278	1,594
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES		
Cash paid in connection with acquisitions, net of cash acquired	(10)	(28)
Additions to property, equipment and other	(1,424)	(1,217)
Cash received for sales of linefill and base gas	24	25
Cash paid for purchases of linefill and base gas	(159)	(61)
Investment in unconsolidated entities	(98)	(124)
Proceeds from sales of assets	2	62
Other investing activities	1	3
Net cash used in investing activities	(1,664)	(1,340)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES		
Net repayments under PAA senior secured hedged inventory facility (Note 6)		(659)
Net repayments under PAA senior secured nedged inventory facility (Note 6)	<u> </u>	(92)
Net repayments under PNG credit agreement	<u> </u>	(32)
Net borrowings/(repayments) under PAA commercial paper program (Note 6)	(683)	319
Proceeds from the issuance of senior notes (Note 6)	1,447	699
Net proceeds from the issuance of common units (Note 8)	655	392
Contributions from general partner	14	8
Net proceeds from the issuance of PNG common units		40
Distributions paid to common unitholders (Note 8)	(688)	(585)
Distributions paid to general partner (Note 8)	(344)	(270)
Distributions paid to noncontrolling interests	(2)	(37)
Other financing activities	(19)	(25)
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities	380	(242)
. , , ,		
Effect of translation adjustment on cash	(1)	(3)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	(7)	9
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period	41	24
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	\$ 34	\$ 33
Cash paid for:		
Interest, net of amounts capitalized	\$ 237	\$ 230
Income taxes, net of amounts refunded	\$ 237	\$ 230
meome takes, het of amounts refunded	Ψ 133	ψ 19

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

6

Table of Contents

PLAINS ALL AMERICAN PIPELINE, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PARTNERS' CAPITAL (in millions)

	Commo	on Units	General	Partners' Capital Excluding General Noncontrolling Noncontrollin					
	Units	Amount	Partner	Interests	Interests	Partners' Capital			
				udited)					
Balance at December 31, 2013	359.1	\$ 7,349	\$ 295	\$ 7,644	\$ 59	\$ 7,703			
Net income		630	364	994	2	996			
Distributions	_	(688)	(344)	(1,032)	(2)	(1,034)			
Issuance of common units	11.8	655	14	669	_	669			
Issuance of common units under LTIP, net of units tendered by employees to satisfy tax									
withholding obligations	0.6	(18)	1	(17)	_	(17)			
Equity-indexed compensation expense	_	25	5	30	_	30			
Distribution equivalent right									
payments	_	(5)	_	(5)	_	(5)			
Other comprehensive loss	_	(207)	(4)	(211)	_	(211)			
Other		(1)		(1)		(1)			
Balance at September 30, 2014	371.5	\$ 7,740	\$ 331	\$ 8,071	\$ 59	\$ 8,130			

Partners' Capital

	Commo	ts		General	Excluding oncontrolling	Noncontrolling			Total Partners'		
_	Units	Amount			Partner		Interests		Interests		Capital
Palance at December 21, 2012	225.2	\$	6 200	ф		udited)		\$	E00	¢	7 1 46
Balance at December 31, 2012	335.3	Ф	6,388	Þ	249	Ф	6,637	Ф	509	\$	7,146
Net income	_		764		288		1,052		22		1,074
Distributions	_		(585)		(270)		(855)		(37)		(892)
Issuance of common units	7.2		392		8		400		_		400
Issuance of common units under LTIP, net of units tendered by employees to satisfy tax											
withholding obligations	0.5		(11)		_		(11)		_		(11)
Equity-indexed compensation expense	_		24		4		28		3		31
Distribution equivalent right											
payments	_		(4)		_		(4)		_		(4)
Other comprehensive income/(loss)	_		(102)		(2)		(104)		5		(99)
Issuance of PNG common units	_		8		_		8		32		40
Other			(1)				(1)				(1)
Balance at September 30, 2013	343.0	\$	6,873	\$	277	\$	7,150	\$	534	\$	7,684

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

7

Table of Contents

PLAINS ALL AMERICAN PIPELINE, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)

Note 1—Organization and Basis of Consolidation and Presentation

Organization

Plains All American Pipeline, L.P. is a Delaware limited partnership formed in 1998. Our operations are conducted directly and indirectly through our primary operating subsidiaries. As used in this Form 10-Q and unless the context indicates otherwise, the terms "Partnership," "Plains," "PAA," "we," "us," "our," "ours" and similar terms refer to Plains All American Pipeline, L.P. and its subsidiaries.

We own and operate midstream energy infrastructure and provide logistics services for crude oil, natural gas liquids ("NGL"), natural gas and refined products. The term NGL includes ethane and natural gasoline products as well as products commonly referred to as liquefied petroleum gas ("LPG"), such as propane and butane. When used in this Form 10-Q, NGL refers to all NGL products including LPG. We own an extensive network of pipeline transportation, terminalling, storage and gathering assets in key crude oil and NGL producing basins and transportation corridors and at major market hubs in the United States and Canada. Our business activities are conducted through three operating segments: (i) Transportation, (ii) Facilities and (iii) Supply and Logistics. See Note 12 for further discussion of our operating segments.

Our 2% general partner interest is held by PAA GP LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, whose sole member is Plains AAP, L.P. ("AAP"), a Delaware limited partnership. In addition to its ownership of PAA GP LLC, AAP also owns all of our incentive distribution rights ("IDRs"). Plains All American GP LLC ("GP LLC"), a Delaware limited liability company, is AAP's general partner. Plains GP Holdings, L.P. (NYSE: PAGP) is the sole member of GP LLC, and at September 30, 2014, owned a 22.4% limited partner interest in AAP. GP LLC manages our operations and activities and employs our domestic officers and personnel. Our Canadian officers and personnel are employed by our subsidiary, Plains Midstream Canada ULC ("PMC"). References to our "general partner," as the context requires, include any or all of PAA GP LLC, AAP and GP LLC.

Definitions

AOCI

Additional defined terms are used in this Form 10-Q and shall have the meanings indicated below:

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Bcf	=	Billion cubic feet
Btu	=	British thermal unit
CAD	=	Canadian dollar
DERs	=	Distribution equivalent rights
EBITDA	=	Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization
FASB	=	Financial Accounting Standards Board
GAAP	=	Generally accepted accounting principles in the United States
ICE	=	IntercontinentalExchange
LIBOR	=	London Interbank Offered Rate
LTIP	=	Long-term incentive plan
Mcf	=	Thousand cubic feet
MLP	=	Master limited partnership
NYMEX	=	New York Mercantile Exchange
PLA	=	Pipeline loss allowance
PNG	=	PAA Natural Gas Storage, L.P.
SEC	=	Securities and Exchange Commission
USD	=	United States dollar
White Cliffs	=	White Cliffs Pipeline, LLC

Table of Contents

Basis of Consolidation and Presentation

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements and notes thereto should be read in conjunction with our 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the instructions for interim reporting as set forth by the SEC. All adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) that in the opinion of management were necessary for a fair statement of the results for the interim periods have been reflected. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Certain reclassifications have been made to information from previous years to conform to the current presentation. The condensed consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2013 was derived from audited financial statements, but does not include all disclosures required by GAAP. The results of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 should not be taken as indicative of results to be expected for the entire year.

Subsequent events have been evaluated through the financial statements issuance date and have been included in the following footnotes where applicable.

Note 2—Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Other than as discussed below and in our 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K, no new accounting pronouncements have become effective or have been issued during the nine months ended September 30, 2014 that are of significance or potential significance to us.

In May 2014, the FASB issued guidance regarding the recognition of revenue from contracts with customers with the underlying principle that an entity will recognize revenue to reflect amounts expected to be received in exchange for the provision of goods and services to customers upon the transfer of those goods or services. The guidance also requires additional disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and the related cash flows. This guidance becomes effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016 and can be adopted either with a full retrospective approach or a modified retrospective approach with a cumulative-effect adjustment as of the date of adoption. We are currently evaluating which transition approach to apply and the effect that adopting this guidance will have on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

In April 2014, the FASB issued guidance that modifies the criteria under which assets to be disposed of are evaluated to determine if such assets qualify as a discontinued operation and requires new disclosures for both discontinued operations and certain other disposals that do not meet the definition of a discontinued operation. This guidance is effective prospectively for annual and interim reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2014. Early adoption is permitted but only for disposals (or classifications as held for sale) that have not been reported in financial statements previously issued or available for issue. We are currently evaluating the provisions of this authoritative guidance and assessing its impact, but do not believe our adoption will have a material impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In March 2013, the FASB issued guidance regarding the release of cumulative translation adjustments into net income when a parent either sells a part or all of its investment in a foreign entity or no longer holds a controlling financial interest in a subsidiary or group of assets that is a business within a foreign entity. This guidance became effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2013. We adopted this guidance on January 1, 2014. Our adoption did not have a material impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Note 3—Accounts Receivable

Our accounts receivable are primarily from purchasers and shippers of crude oil and, to a lesser extent, purchasers of NGL and natural gas storage. These purchasers include, but are not limited to, refiners, producers, marketing and trading companies and financial institutions that are active in the physical and financial commodity markets. The majority of our accounts receivable relate to our crude oil supply and logistics activities that can generally be described as high volume and low margin activities, in many cases involving exchanges of crude oil volumes.

To mitigate credit risk related to our accounts receivable, we have in place a rigorous credit review process. We closely monitor market conditions in order to make a determination with respect to the amount, if any, of credit to be extended to any given customer and the form and amount of financial performance assurances we require. Such financial assurances are commonly provided to us in the form of advance cash payments, standby letters of credit or parental guarantees. As of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, we had received \$181 million and \$117 million, respectively, of advance cash payments from third parties to mitigate credit risk. Furthermore, as of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, we had received \$278 million and \$426 million, respectively, of standby letters of credit to support obligations due from third parties, a portion of which applies to future business. In addition, in an effort to mitigate credit risk, a significant portion of our transactions with counterparties are settled on a net-cash basis.

9

Table of Contents

Further, we enter into netting agreements (contractual agreements that allow us to offset receivables and payables with those counterparties against each other on our balance sheet) for a majority of such arrangements.

We review all outstanding accounts receivable balances on a monthly basis and record a reserve for amounts that we expect will not be fully recovered. We do not apply actual balances against the reserve until we have exhausted substantially all collection efforts. At September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, substantially all of our accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtful accounts) were less than 30 days past their scheduled invoice date. Our allowance for doubtful accounts receivable totaled \$4 million and \$5 million at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Although we consider our allowance for doubtful accounts receivable to be adequate, actual amounts could vary significantly from estimated amounts.

Inventory, linefill and base gas and long-term inventory consisted of the following as of the dates indicated (barrels and natural gas volumes in thousands and carrying value in millions):

	September 30, 2014						December 31, 2013																																	
	Volumes	Unit of Measure		arrying Value	Price/ Unit ⁽¹⁾																		Price/ Unit ⁽¹⁾												Volumes	Unit of Measure		rrying Value		Price/ Unit ⁽¹⁾
Inventory												,																												
Crude oil	5,665	barrels	\$	476	\$	84.02	6,951	barrels	\$	540	\$	77.69																												
NGL	17,392	barrels		699	\$	40.19	8,061	barrels		352	\$	43.67																												
Natural gas	29,245	Mcf		119	\$	4.07	40,505	Mcf		150	\$	3.70																												
Other	N/A			20		N/A	N/A			23		N/A																												
Inventory subtotal				1,314						1,065																														
Linefill and base gas																																								
Crude oil	11,390	barrels		715	\$	62.77	10,966	barrels		679	\$	61.92																												
NGL	1,214	barrels		54	\$	44.48	1,341	barrels		62	\$	46.23																												
Natural gas	28,612	Mcf		134	\$	4.68	16,615	Mcf		57	\$	3.43																												
Linefill and base gas subtotal				903						798																														
Long-term inventory																																								
Crude oil	2,557	barrels		207	\$	80.95	2,498	barrels		202	\$	80.86																												
NGL	1,681	barrels		63	\$	37.48	1,161	barrels		49	\$	42.20																												
Long-term inventory subtotal				270					_	251																														
3																																								
Total			\$	2,487					\$	2,114																														

Price per unit of measure is comprised of a weighted average associated with various grades, qualities and locations. Accordingly, these prices may not coincide with any published benchmarks for such products.

At the end of each reporting period, we assess the carrying value of our inventory and make any adjustments necessary to reduce the carrying value to the applicable net realizable value. We did not record any such charges during the three months ended September 30, 2014. We recorded a charge of \$37 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2014 related to the writedown of our natural gas inventory that was purchased in conjunction with managing natural gas storage deliverability requirements during the extended period of severe cold weather in the first quarter of 2014. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, we recorded a charge of \$7 million, primarily related to the writedown of our crude oil inventory due to declines in prices during the period. These adjustments are a component of "Purchases and related costs" on our accompanying condensed consolidated statements of operations. The recognition of the adjustment in 2013 was substantially offset by the recognition of gains on derivative instruments being utilized to hedge the future sales of our crude oil inventory. Substantially all of such gains were recorded to "Supply and Logistics segment revenues" on our accompanying condensed consolidated statements of operations. See Note 10 for discussion of our derivatives and risk management activities.

10

Table of Contents

Note 5—Goodwill

The table below reflects our goodwill by segment and changes during the period indicated (in millions):

	Trans	portation	Facilities	Supply and Logistics			Total		
Balance at December 31, 2013	\$	878	\$ 1,162	\$	463	\$	2,503		
Foreign currency translation adjustments	·	(14)	 (6)		(3)		(23)		
Other		_	1		_		1		
Balance at September 30, 2014	\$	864	\$ 1,157	\$	460	\$	2,481		

We completed our annual goodwill impairment test as of June 30, 2014 and determined that there was no impairment of goodwill.

Note 6—Debt

Debt consisted of the following as of the dates indicated (in millions):

	Sep	tember 30, 2014	December 31, 2013
SHORT-TERM DEBT			
PAA commercial paper notes, bearing a weighted-average interest rate of 0.30% and 0.33%, respectively (1)	\$	423	\$ 1,109
PAA senior notes:			
5.25% senior notes due June 2015		150	_
3.95% senior notes due September 2015		400	_
Other		3	4
Total short-term debt		976	 1,113

L	U	IN	G-	1	E.	K.	VI.	v	Ŀ	5 L	
		_									

PAA senior notes:		
5.25% senior notes due June 2015	_	150
3.95% senior notes due September 2015	_	400
5.88% senior notes due August 2016	175	175
6.13% senior notes due January 2017	400	400

6.50% senior notes due May 2018	600	600
8.75% senior notes due May 2019	350	350
5.75% senior notes due January 2020	500	500
5.00% senior notes due February 2021	600	600
3.65% senior notes due June 2022	750	750
2.85% senior notes due January 2023	400	400
3.85% senior notes due October 2023	700	700
3.60% senior notes due November 2024	750	_
6.70% senior notes due May 2036	250	250
6.65% senior notes due January 2037	600	600
5.15% senior notes due June 2042	500	500
4.30% senior notes due January 2043	350	350
4.70% senior notes due June 2044	700	_
Unamortized discounts	(16)	(15)
PAA senior notes, net of unamortized discounts	 7,609	 6,710
Other	4	5
Total long-term debt	7,613	6,715
Total debt ⁽²⁾	\$ 8,589	\$ 7,828

PAA commercial paper notes are backstopped by the PAA senior unsecured revolving credit facility and the PAA senior secured hedged inventory facility, which mature in August 2019 and August 2017, respectively; as such, any borrowings under the PAA commercial paper program effectively reduce the available capacity under these facilities. At September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, we classified \$423 million and approximately \$1.1 billion, respectively, of borrowings under our commercial paper program as short-term. These borrowings are primarily designated as working capital borrowings, must be repaid within one year and are primarily for hedged NGL and crude oil inventory and NYMEX and ICE margin deposits.

11

Table of Contents

Our fixed-rate senior notes (including current maturities) had a face value of approximately \$8.2 billion and \$6.7 billion at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. We estimated the aggregate fair value of these notes as of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 to be approximately \$8.8 billion and \$7.2 billion, respectively. Our fixed-rate senior notes are traded among institutions, and these trades are routinely published by a reporting service. Our determination of fair value is based on reported trading activity near quarter end. We estimate that the carrying value of outstanding borrowings under our credit facilities and commercial paper program approximates fair value as interest rates reflect current market rates. The fair value estimates for our senior notes, credit facilities and commercial paper program are based upon observable market data and are classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. See Note 10 for additional discussion of the fair value hierarchy.

Credit Facilities

In August 2014, we extended the maturity dates of our senior secured hedged inventory facility and our senior unsecured revolving credit facility by one year through the exercise of the option included in the current credit agreements. Our senior secured hedged inventory facility and our senior unsecured revolving credit facility now mature in August 2017 and August 2019, respectively.

Borrowings and Repayments

Total borrowings under our credit agreements and the commercial paper program for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 were approximately \$55.6 billion and \$12.7 billion, respectively. Total repayments under our credit agreements and the commercial paper program for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 were approximately \$56.3 billion and \$13.2 billion, respectively. The variance in total gross borrowings and repayments is impacted by various business and financial factors including, but not limited to, the timing, average term and method of general partnership borrowing activities.

Letters of Credit

In connection with our supply and logistics activities, we provide certain suppliers with irrevocable standby letters of credit to secure our obligation for the purchase of crude oil, NGL and natural gas. Additionally, we issue letters of credit to support insurance programs and construction activities. At September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, we had outstanding letters of credit of \$66 million and \$41 million, respectively.

Senior Notes Issuances

On April 23, 2014, we completed the issuance of \$700 million, 4.70% senior notes due 2044 at a public offering price of 99.734%. Interest payments are due on June 15 and December 15 of each year, commencing on December 15, 2014. In anticipation of the issuance of these senior notes, we entered into \$250 million notional principal amount of U.S. treasury locks in March and April 2014 to hedge the treasury rate portion of the interest rate on a portion of the notes. We terminated these treasury locks in April 2014. See Note 10 for additional disclosure.

On September 9, 2014, we completed the issuance of \$750 million, 3.60% senior notes due 2024 at a public offering price of 99.842%. Interest payments are due on May 1 and November 1 of each year, commencing on May 1, 2015.

Commercial Paper Program

Effective October 20, 2014, the maximum aggregate borrowing capacity under our commercial paper program was increased from \$1.5 billion to \$3.0 billion.

Basic and diluted net income per limited partner unit is determined pursuant to the two-class method for Master Limited Partnerships as prescribed in FASB guidance. The two-class method is an earnings allocation formula that is used to determine earnings to our general partner, common unitholders and participating securities according to distributions pertaining to the current period's net income and participation rights in undistributed earnings. Under this method, all earnings are allocated to our general partner, common unitholders and participating securities based on their respective rights to receive distributions, regardless of whether those earnings would actually be distributed during a particular period from an economic or practical perspective.

12

Table of Contents

The Partnership calculates basic and diluted net income per limited partner unit by dividing net income attributable to PAA (after deducting the amount allocated to the general partner's interest, IDRs and participating securities) by the basic and diluted weighted-average number of limited partner units outstanding during the period. Participating securities include LTIP awards that have vested DERs, which entitle the grantee to a cash payment equal to the cash distribution paid on our outstanding common units.

Diluted net income per limited partner unit is computed based on the weighted average number of units plus the effect of dilutive potential units outstanding during the period using the two-class method. Our LTIP awards that contemplate the issuance of common units are considered dilutive unless (i) vesting occurs only upon the satisfaction of a performance condition and (ii) that performance condition has yet to be satisfied. LTIP awards that are deemed to be dilutive are reduced by a hypothetical unit repurchase based on the remaining unamortized fair value, as prescribed by the treasury stock method in guidance issued by FASB. See Note 15 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part IV of our 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K for a complete discussion of our LTIP awards including specific discussion regarding DERs.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income per limited partner unit for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 (in millions, except per unit data):

	Three Months Ended September 30,					Nine Months Ended September 30,			
		2014		2013		2014		2013	
Basic Net Income per Limited Partner Unit		222	_		_		_		
Net income attributable to PAA	\$	323	\$	231	\$	994	\$	1,052	
Less: General partner's incentive distribution (1)		(124)		(95)		(351)		(272)	
Less: General partner 2% ownership (1)		(4)		(3)		(13)		(16)	
Net income available to limited partners		195		133		630		764	
Less: Undistributed earnings allocated and distributions to									
participating securities (1)		(1)		(1)		(5)		(5)	
Net income available to limited partners in accordance with									
application of the two-class method for MLPs	\$	194	\$	132	\$	625	\$	759	
Basic weighted average limited partner units outstanding		370		343		365		340	
Basic net income per limited partner unit	\$	0.52	\$	0.38	\$	1.71	\$	2.23	
	_		_						
Diluted Net Income per Limited Partner Unit									
Net income attributable to PAA	\$	323	\$	231	\$	994	\$	1,052	
Less: General partner's incentive distribution (1)		(124)		(95)		(351)		(272)	
Less: General partner 2% ownership (1)		(4)		(3)		(13)		(16)	
Net income available to limited partners		195		133		630		764	
Less: Undistributed earnings allocated and distributions to									
participating securities (1)		(1)		(1)		(5)		(4)	
Net income available to limited partners in accordance with		(-)		(-)		(-)		(-)	
application of the two-class method for MLPs	\$	194	\$	132	\$	625	\$	760	
Tr								-	
Basic weighted average limited partner units outstanding		370		343		365		340	
Effect of dilutive securities: Weighted average LTIP units		1		2		2		2	
Diluted weighted average limited partner units outstanding	_	371		345		367		342	
2 nates in engineer arrenge infinites paraier anno outstanding	_		_	2.10	_		_	5.12	
Diluted net income per limited partner unit	\$	0.52	\$	0.38	\$	1.70	\$	2.22	
Diffuce het meome per mineu partier unit	*	0.32	Ψ	0.50	<u> </u>	1.70	Ψ		

We calculate net income available to limited partners based on the distributions pertaining to the current period's net income. After adjusting for the appropriate period's distributions, the remaining undistributed earnings or excess distributions over earnings, if any, are allocated to the general partner, limited partners and participating securities in accordance with the contractual terms of the partnership agreement and as further prescribed under the two-class method.

distributed to them under the terms of the partnership agreement, basic and diluted net income per limited partner unit as reflected in the table above would be impacted as follows:

	Three Mor Septem		Nine Months Ended September 30,					
	2014		2013	· ·	2014		2013	
Basic net income per limited partner unit impact	\$	\$		\$		\$	(0.23)	
Diluted net income per limited partner unit impact	\$ 	\$	<u> </u>	\$	<u> </u>	\$	(0.23)	

Note 8—Partners' Capital and Distributions

Distributions

The following table details the distributions paid during or pertaining to the first nine months of 2014, net of reductions to the general partner's incentive distributions (in millions, except per unit data):

				Dis	stributions					
		Common			Partı	ıer			p	er limited
Date Declared	Distribution Date	Units		Incentive		2%		Total	pa	rtner unit
October 8, 2014	November 14, 2014 (1)	\$ 245	\$	124	\$	5	\$	374	\$	0.6600
July 8, 2014	August 14, 2014	\$ 238	\$	117	\$	5	\$	360	\$	0.6450
April 7, 2014	May 15, 2014	\$ 229	\$	110	\$	5	\$	344	\$	0.6300
January 9, 2014	February 14, 2014	\$ 221	\$	102	\$	5	\$	328	\$	0.6150

⁽¹⁾ Payable to unitholders of record at the close of business on October 31, 2014 for the period July 1, 2014 through September 30, 2014.

Continuous Offering Program

In August 2014, we entered into an equity distribution agreement with several financial institutions pursuant to which we may offer and sell, through sales agents, common units representing limited partner interests having an aggregate offering price of up to \$900 million. During the nine months ended September 30, 2014, we issued an aggregate of approximately 11.8 million common units under our continuous offering program, generating proceeds of \$669 million, including our general partner's proportionate capital contribution of \$14 million, net of \$7 million of commissions to our sales agents.

Noncontrolling Interests in Subsidiaries

As of September 30, 2014, noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries consisted of a 25% interest in SLC Pipeline LLC. On December 31, 2013, we purchased the noncontrolling interests in PNG, and PNG became our wholly-owned subsidiary.

Note 9—Equity-Indexed Compensation Plans

We refer to the PAA LTIPs and AAP Management Units collectively as our "Equity-indexed compensation plans." For additional discussion of our equity-indexed compensation plans and awards, see Note 15 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part IV of our 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

14

Table of Contents

PAA LTIP Awards

Activity for LTIP awards denominated in PAA units under our equity-indexed compensation plans is summarized in the following table (units in millions):

		Weighted Average Grant Date
	Units (1)	Fair Value per Unit
Outstanding at December 31, 2013	8.4	\$ 36.97
Granted	1.1	\$ 47.27
Vested (2)	(1.9)	\$ 25.54
Cancelled or forfeited	(0.3)	\$ 39.63
Outstanding at September 30, 2014	7.3	\$ 41.28

⁽¹⁾ Amounts do not include AAP Management Units.

AAP Management Units

Activity for AAP Management Units is summarized in the following table (in millions):

During the nine months ended September 30, 2014, approximately 0.6 million PAA common units were issued, net of approximately 0.3 million units withheld for taxes, in connection with the settlement of vested awards. The remaining PAA awards (approximately 1.0 million units) that vested during the nine months ended September 30, 2014 were settled in cash.

				Ma	anagement Units (1)
Balance at December 31, 2013	3.5	48.6	47.0	\$	51
Granted	(0.4)	0.4			11
Earned	N/A	N/A	0.8		N/A
Balance at September 30, 2014	3.1	49.0	47.8	\$	62

Of the \$62 million grant date fair value, approximately \$54 million had been recognized through September 30, 2014. Approximately \$5 million of such amount was recognized as expense during the nine months ended September 30, 2014.

Other Consolidated Equity-Indexed Compensation Plan Information

The table below summarizes the expense recognized and the value of vested LTIPs (settled both in common units and cash) under our equity-indexed compensation plans and includes both liability-classified and equity-classified awards (in millions):

	Three Months Ended September 30,				Nine Months Ended September 30,			
		2014		2013		2014		2013
Equity-indexed compensation expense	\$	22	\$	17	\$	90	\$	96
LTIP unit-settled vestings	\$	1	\$	1	\$	52	\$	47
LTIP cash-settled vestings	\$	_	\$	_	\$	52	\$	61
DER cash payments	\$	2	\$	2	\$	6	\$	5
		15						

Table of Contents

Note 10—Derivatives and Risk Management Activities

We identify the risks that underlie our core business activities and use risk management strategies to mitigate those risks when we determine that there is value in doing so. Our policy is to use derivative instruments for risk management purposes and not for the purpose of speculating on hydrocarbon commodity (referred to herein as "commodity") price changes. We use various derivative instruments to (i) manage our exposure to commodity price risk as well as to optimize our profits, (ii) manage our exposure to interest rate risk and (iii) manage our exposure to currency exchange rate risk. Our commodity risk management policies and procedures are designed to help ensure that our hedging activities address our risks by monitoring our derivative positions, as well as physical volumes, grades, locations, delivery schedules and storage capacity. Our interest rate and currency exchange rate risk management policies and procedures are designed to monitor our derivative positions and ensure that those positions are consistent with our objectives and approved strategies. When we apply hedge accounting, our policy is to formally document all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as our risk management objectives for undertaking the hedge. This process includes specific identification of the hedging instrument and the hedged transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the hedging instrument's effectiveness will be assessed. Both at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, we assess whether the derivatives used in a transaction are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows or the fair value of hedged items.

Commodity Price Risk Hedging

Our core business activities involve certain commodity price-related risks that we manage in various ways, including through the use of derivative instruments. Our policy is to (i) only purchase inventory for which we have a market, (ii) structure our sales contracts so that price fluctuations do not materially affect our operating income and (iii) not acquire and hold physical inventory or derivatives for the purpose of speculating on commodity price changes. The material commodity-related risks inherent in our business activities can be divided into the following general categories:

Commodity Purchases and Sales — In the normal course of our operations, we purchase and sell commodities. We use derivatives to manage the associated risks and to optimize profits. As of September 30, 2014, net derivative positions related to these activities included:

- · An average of 248,700 barrels per day net long position (total of 7.7 million barrels) associated with our crude oil purchases, which was unwound ratably during October 2014 to match monthly average pricing.
- · A net short time spread position averaging approximately 19,900 barrels per day (total of 11.5 million barrels), which hedges a portion of our anticipated crude oil lease gathering purchases through June 2016. Our use of these derivatives does not expose us to outright price risk.
- · An average of 15,200 barrels per day (total of 6.5 million barrels) of crude oil grade spread positions through December 2015. These derivatives allow us to lock in grade basis differentials. Our use of these derivatives does not expose us to outright price risk.
- · A net short position of approximately 25.1 Bcf through April 2016 related to anticipated sales of natural gas inventory and base gas requirements.
- A net short position of approximately 12.1 million barrels through December 2015 related to the anticipated sales of our crude oil, NGL and refined products inventory.

Pipeline Loss Allowance Oil — As is common in the pipeline transportation industry, our tariffs incorporate a loss allowance factor that is intended to offset losses due to evaporation, measurement and other losses in transit. We utilize derivative instruments to hedge a portion of the anticipated sales of the allowance oil that is to be collected under our tariffs. As of September 30, 2014, our PLA hedges included a net short position for an average of approximately 1,400 barrels per day (total of 1.1 million barrels) through December 2016 and a long call position of approximately 0.6 million barrels through December 2016.

Natural Gas Processing/NGL Fractionation — As part of our supply and logistics activities, we purchase natural gas for processing and NGL mix for fractionation, and we sell the resulting individual specification products (including ethane, propane, butane and condensate). In conjunction with these activities, we hedge the price risk associated with the purchase of the natural gas and the subsequent sale of the individual specification products. As of

Table of Contents

To the extent they qualify and we decide to make the election, all of our commodity derivatives where we elect hedge accounting are designated as cash flow hedges. We have determined that substantially all of our physical purchase and sale agreements qualify for the normal purchase normal sale scope exception. Physical commodity contracts that meet the definition of a derivative but are ineligible, or not designated, for the normal purchase normal sale scope exception are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized in earnings.

Interest Rate Risk Hedging

We use interest rate derivatives to hedge interest rate risk associated with anticipated debt issuances and outstanding debt instruments. The derivative instruments we use to manage this risk consist primarily of interest rate swaps and treasury locks. As of September 30, 2014, AOCI includes deferred losses of \$108 million that relate to open and terminated interest rate derivatives that were designated for hedge accounting. The terminated interest rate derivatives were cash-settled in connection with the issuance or refinancing of debt agreements. The deferred loss related to these instruments is being amortized to interest expense over the terms of the hedged debt instruments.

We have entered into forward starting interest rate swaps to hedge the underlying benchmark interest rate related to forecasted debt issuances through 2015. The following table summarizes the terms of our forward starting interest rate swaps as of September 30, 2014 (notional amounts in millions):

Hedged Transaction	Number and Types of Derivatives Employed	Notional Amount	Expected Termination Date	Average Rate Locked	Accounting Treatment
Anticipated debt offering	10 forward starting swaps	\$ 250	6/15/2015	3.60%	Cash flow hedge
	(30-year)				

In anticipation of our April 2014 issuance of senior notes, we entered into an aggregate of five treasury lock agreements in March and April 2014 for a combined notional amount of \$250 million at a locked in rate of 3.62%. The treasury locks were designated as cash flow hedges, thus, changes in fair value are deferred in AOCI. In connection with our April 2014 senior notes issuance, these treasury locks were terminated prior to maturity for an aggregate cash payment of \$7 million. The effective portion of the treasury locks was deferred in AOCI and will be amortized to interest expense over the life of the senior notes.

Currency Exchange Rate Risk Hedging

Because a significant portion of our Canadian business is conducted in CAD and, at times, a portion of our debt is denominated in CAD, we use foreign currency derivatives to minimize the risk of unfavorable changes in exchange rates. These instruments include foreign currency exchange contracts and forwards.

As of September 30, 2014, our outstanding foreign currency derivatives include derivatives we use to (i) hedge currency exchange risk associated with USD-denominated commodity purchases and sales in Canada and (ii) hedge currency exchange risk created by the use of USD-denominated commodity derivatives to hedge commodity price risk associated with CAD-denominated commodity purchases and sales.

The following table summarizes our open forward exchange contracts as of September 30, 2014 (in millions):

		USD	CAD	Average Exchange Rate USD to CAD
Forward exchange contracts that exchange CAD for USD:				
	2014	\$ 284	\$ 319	\$1.00 - \$1.12
	2015	178	200	\$1.00 - \$1.12
		\$ 462	\$ 519	\$1.00 - \$1.12
Forward exchange contracts that exchange USD for CAD:				
	2014	\$ 284	\$ 313	\$1.00 - \$1.10
	2015	178	195	\$1.00 - \$1.09
		\$ 462	\$ 508	\$1.00 - \$1.10
	17			

Table of Contents

Summary of Financial Impact

We record all open derivatives on the balance sheet as either assets or liabilities measured at fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognized currently in earnings unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met. For derivatives that qualify as cash flow hedges, changes in fair value of the effective portion of the hedges are deferred in AOCI and recognized in earnings in the periods during which the underlying physical transactions are recognized in earnings. Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting and the portion of cash flow hedges that are not highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged items are recognized in earnings each period. Cash settlements associated with our derivative activities are reflected as cash flows from operating activities in our condensed consolidated statements of cash flows.

A summary of the impact of our derivative activities recognized in earnings for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 is as follows (in millions):

Three Months Ended September 30, 2014	Three Months Ended September 30, 2013

	Gair	Derivatives Relatio n/(loss) assified	nships	Other		Derivatives Not			Gai	Derivatives Relatio in/(loss) lassified	nships (Other		erivatives Not		
Location of gain/(loss) Commodity Derivatives	AO	com CI into ome ⁽¹⁾	re	nin/(loss) cognized n income		Designated as a Hedge		Total	AC	from OCI into come ⁽¹⁾	rec	in/(loss) ognized income		esignated as a Hedge		Total
Supply and Logistics segment revenues	\$	(4)	\$	_	\$	(17)	\$	(21)	\$	109	\$	_	\$	(91)	\$	18
Facilities segment revenues		_		_		_		_		(2)		_		_		(2)
Field operating costs		_		_		(2)		(2)		_		_		2		2
Interest Rate Derivatives																
Interest expense		(1)		_		_		(1)		(2)		3		_		1
Foreign Currency Derivatives																
Supply and Logistics segment revenues		_		_		(17)		(17)		_		_		_		_
Other income/(expense), net		<u> </u>		_		<u> </u>		<u> </u>		1		_		<u> </u>		1
Total Gain/(Loss) on Derivatives Recognized in	¢	(E)	¢		ď	(26)	ď	(41)	¢	106	ď	2	¢	(90)	¢	20
Net Income	\$	(5)	\$		\$	(36)	\$	(41)	\$	106	\$	3	\$	(89)	\$	20

18

Table of Contents

		Niı	ne Moi	nths Ended	Septe	ember 30, 2014				Nin	ne Months Ended	Septe	ember 30, 2013	
		Derivatives Relatio								Derivatives Relatio				
Location of gain/(loss) Commodity Derivatives	recla f AO	n/(loss) assified rom CI into ome ⁽¹⁾	gai rec	Other in/(loss) ognized income		Derivatives Not Designated as a Hedge		Total	rec A(nin/(loss) classified from OCI into come ⁽¹⁾	Other gain/(loss) recognized in income		Derivatives Not Designated as a Hedge	<u>Total</u>
J														
Supply and Logistics segment revenues	\$	(12)	\$	_	\$	(17)	\$	(29)	\$	139	\$ —	\$	(34)	\$ 105
Facilities segment revenues		_		_		_		_		(14)	_		_	(14)
Field operating costs		_		_		(3)		(3)		_	_		7	7
Interest Rate Derivatives														
Trademont arrange		(4)						(4)		(5)	3			(2)
Interest expense		(4)		_		_		(4)		(5)	3		_	(2)
Foreign Currency Derivatives														
Supply and Logistics														
segment revenues		_		_		(17)		(17)		_	_		_	_
Other income/(expense) not										4				4
Other income/(expense), net					_		_			4		_	<u> </u>	 4
Total Gain/(Loss) on														
Derivatives Recognized in Net Income	\$	(16)	\$		\$	(37)	\$	(53)	\$	124	\$ 3	\$	(27)	\$ 100

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014, all of our hedged transactions were probable of occurring. During the three months ended September 30, 2013 we reclassified losses of \$2 million from AOCI to Facilities segment revenues as a result of anticipated hedged transactions that were probable of not occurring. During the nine months ended September 30, 2013, we reclassified gains of \$3 million and losses of \$1 million from AOCI to Supply and Logistics segment revenues and Facilities segment revenues, respectively, as a result of anticipated hedged transactions that were probable of not occurring.

The following table summarizes the derivative assets and liabilities on our condensed consolidated balance sheet on a gross basis as of September 30, 2014 (in millions):

	Asset Deriva	tives		Liability Derivat	ives	
	Balance Sheet Location	Fair	Value	Balance Sheet Location	Fair	r Value
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments:						
Commodity derivatives	Other current assets	\$	7			
	Other long-term assets		4			
Interest rate derivatives				Other current liabilities	\$	(15)
Total derivatives designated as hedging						
instruments		\$	11		\$	(15)
Derivatives not designated as hedging						
instruments:						
Commodity derivatives	Other current assets	\$	65	Other current assets	\$	(43)
	Other long-term assets		5	Other current liabilities		(7)
	Other current liabilities		2	Other long-term liabilities		(2)
Foreign currency derivatives				Other current liabilities		(10)
Total derivatives not designated as hedging						
instruments		\$	72		\$	(62)
Total derivatives		\$	83		\$	(77)

The following table summarizes the derivative assets and liabilities on our condensed consolidated balance sheet on a gross basis as of December 31, 2013 (in millions):

	Asset Deriva	tives		Liability Derivat	ives	
	Balance Sheet Location	Fair	Value	Balance Sheet Location	Fair	Value
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments:						_
Commodity derivatives	Other current assets	\$	36	Other current assets	\$	(24)
	Other long-term assets		5			
Interest rate derivatives	Other long-term assets		26			
Total derivatives designated as hedging instruments		\$	67		\$	(24)
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:						
Commodity derivatives	Other current assets	\$	60	Other current assets	\$	(117)
	Other long-term assets		5	Other long-term assets		(6)
	Other current liabilities		1	Other current liabilities		(5)
				Other long-term liabilities		(1)
Foreign currency derivatives				Other current liabilities		(4)
Total derivatives not designated as hedging instruments		\$	66		\$	(133)
Total derivatives		\$	133		\$	(157)

Our derivative transactions are governed through ISDA (International Swaps and Derivatives Association) master agreements and clearing brokerage agreements. These agreements include stipulations regarding the right of set off in the event that we or our counterparty default on our performance obligations. If a default were to occur, both parties have the right to net amounts payable and receivable into a single net settlement between parties.

20

Table of Contents

Our accounting policy is to offset derivative assets and liabilities executed with the same counterparty when a master netting arrangement exists. Accordingly, we also offset derivative assets and liabilities with amounts associated with cash margin. Our exchange-traded derivatives are transacted through clearing brokerage accounts and are subject to margin requirements as established by the respective exchange. On a daily basis, our account equity (consisting of the sum of our cash balance and the fair value of our open derivatives) is compared to our initial margin requirement resulting in the payment or return of variation margin. As of September 30, 2014, we had a net broker receivable of \$35 million (consisting of initial margin of \$74 million reduced by \$39 million of variation margin that had been returned to us). As of December 31, 2013, we had a net broker receivable of \$161 million (consisting of initial margin of \$85 million increased by \$76 million of variation margin that had been posted by us).

The following tables present information about derivatives and financial assets and liabilities that are subject to offsetting, including enforceable master netting arrangements at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 (in millions):

		Septembe	r 30, 2014		December 31, 2013			
	Deriv Asset P	ositions		erivative lity Positions		rivative Positions		Perivative Elity Positions
Netting Adjustments:								
Gross position - asset/(liability)	\$	83	\$	(77)	\$	133	\$	(157)

NT COLUMN TO THE	(45)	4=	(4.40)	1.10
Netting adjustment	(45)	45	(148)	148
Cash collateral paid/(received)	35	_	161	_
Net position - asset/(liability)	\$ 73	\$ (32)	\$ 146	\$ (9)
Balance Sheet Location After Netting Adjustments:				
Other current assets	\$ 64	\$ 	\$ 116	\$ _
Other long-term assets	9	_	30	_
Other current liabilities	_	(30)		(8)
Other long-term liabilities	 <u> </u>	(2)	 <u> </u>	(1)
	\$ 73	\$ (32)	\$ 146	\$ (9)

As of September 30, 2014, there was a net loss of \$118 million deferred in AOCI including tax effects. The deferred net loss recorded in AOCI is expected to be reclassified to future earnings contemporaneously with (i) the earnings recognition of the underlying hedged commodity transaction or (ii) interest expense accruals associated with underlying debt instruments. Of the total net loss deferred in AOCI at September 30, 2014, we expect to reclassify a net gain of \$1 million to earnings in the next twelve months. The remaining deferred loss of \$119 million is expected to be reclassified to earnings through 2045. A portion of these amounts are based on market prices as of September 30, 2014; thus, actual amounts to be reclassified will differ and could vary materially as a result of changes in market conditions.

The net deferred gain/(loss), including tax effects, recognized in AOCI for derivatives for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 are as follows (in millions):

		Three Mon Septem	ed	Nine Mont Septem	ed
	2014		2013	2014	2013
Commodity derivatives, net	\$	2	\$ 66	\$ (10)	\$ 77
Interest rate derivatives, net		(8)	12	(47)	63
Total	\$	(6)	\$ 78	\$ (57)	\$ 140

At September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, none of our outstanding derivatives contained credit-risk related contingent features that would result in a material adverse impact to us upon any change in our credit ratings. Although we may be required to post margin on our cleared derivatives as described above, we do not require our non-cleared derivative counterparties to post collateral with us.

21

Table of Contents

Recurring Fair Value Measurements

Derivative Financial Assets and Liabilities

The following table sets forth by level within the fair value hierarchy our financial assets and liabilities that were accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis as of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 (in millions):

		F	air Val	ue as of Se	ptem	ber 30, 2014	ļ.			F	air Val	ue as of Do	ecemb	er 31, 2013	3	
Recurring Fair Value Measures (1)	Lev	el 1	L	evel 2]	Level 3	- 1	Fotal	Le	vel 1	L	evel 2	L	evel 3		Total
Commodity derivatives	\$	6	\$	22	\$	3	\$	31	\$	16	\$	(59)	\$	(3)	\$	(46)
Interest rate derivatives				(15)				(15)				26		_		26
Foreign currency derivatives				(10)				(10)				(4)				(4)
Total net derivative asset/(liability)	\$	6	\$	(3)	\$	3	\$	6	\$	16	\$	(37)	\$	(3)	\$	(24)

⁽¹⁾ Derivative assets and liabilities are presented above on a net basis but do not include related cash margin deposits.

Level 1

Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy includes exchange-traded commodity derivatives such as futures and options. The fair value of exchange-traded commodity derivatives is based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets.

Level 2

Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy includes exchange-cleared commodity derivatives and over-the-counter commodity, interest rate and foreign currency derivatives that are traded in active markets. In addition, it includes certain physical commodity contracts. The fair value of these derivatives is based on broker price quotations which are corroborated with market observable inputs.

Level 3

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy includes certain physical commodity contracts. The fair value of our Level 3 physical commodity contracts is based on a valuation model utilizing broker-quoted forward commodity prices, and timing estimates, which involve management judgment. The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of our Level 3 derivatives are forward prices obtained from brokers. A significant increase or decrease in these forward prices could result in a material change in fair value to our Level 3 derivatives.

Rollforward of Level 3 Net Asset/(Liability)

The following table provides a reconciliation of changes in fair value of the beginning and ending balances for our derivatives classified as Level 3 (in millions):

		Three Moi Septem				Nine Mon Septem		
		2014		2013		2014		2013
Beginning Balance	\$	1	\$	4	\$	(3)	\$	4
Unrealized gains/(losses):								
Included in earnings (1)		1		(4)		_		(1)
Included in other comprehensive income		_		_				_
Settlements		_		(1)		3		(3)
Derivatives entered into during the period		1		_		3		(1)
Transfers out of Level 3		_		_		_		_
Ending Balance	\$	3	\$	(1)	\$	3	\$	(1)
						_		
Change in unrealized gains/(losses) included in earnings relating	ď	2	ď	(4)	ď	7	ď	(1)
to Level 3 derivatives still held at the end of the periods	Э	2	Ф	(4)	Ф	3	Ф	(1)

We reported unrealized gains and losses associated with Level 3 commodity derivatives in our condensed consolidated statements of operations as Supply and Logistics segment revenues.

22

Table of Contents

Note 11—Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

General. In the ordinary course of business, we are involved in various legal proceedings. To the extent we are able to assess the likelihood of a negative outcome for these proceedings, our assessments of such likelihood range from remote to probable. If we determine that a negative outcome is probable and the amount of loss is reasonably estimable, we accrue the estimated amount. We do not believe that the outcome of these legal proceedings, individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. Although we believe that our operations are presently in material compliance with applicable requirements, as we acquire and incorporate additional assets it is possible that the EPA or other governmental entities may seek to impose fines, penalties or performance obligations on us (or on a portion of our operations) as a result of any past noncompliance whether such noncompliance initially developed before or after our acquisition.

Environmental

General. Although we believe that our efforts to enhance our leak prevention and detection capabilities have produced positive results, we have experienced (and likely will experience future) releases of hydrocarbon products into the environment from our pipeline, rail and storage operations. These releases can result from unpredictable man-made or natural forces and may reach surface water bodies, groundwater aquifers or other sensitive environments. Whether current or past, damages and liabilities associated with any such releases from our assets may substantially affect our business.

At September 30, 2014, our estimated undiscounted reserve for environmental liabilities totaled \$87 million, of which \$13 million was classified as short-term and \$74 million was classified as long-term. At December 31, 2013, our estimated undiscounted reserve for environmental liabilities totaled \$93 million, of which \$11 million was classified as short-term and \$82 million was classified as long-term. The short- and long-term environmental liabilities referenced above are reflected in "Accounts payable and accrued liabilities" and "Other long-term liabilities and deferred credits," respectively, on our condensed consolidated balance sheets. At September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, we had recorded receivables totaling \$9 million and \$10 million, respectively, for amounts probable of recovery under insurance and from third parties under indemnification agreements, which are predominantly reflected in "Trade accounts receivable and other receivables, net" on our condensed consolidated balance sheets.

In some cases, the actual cash expenditures may not occur for three years or longer. Our estimates used in these reserves are based on information currently available to us and our assessment of the ultimate outcome. Among the many uncertainties that impact our estimates are the necessary regulatory approvals for, and potential modification of, our remediation plans, the limited amount of data available upon initial assessment of the impact of soil or water contamination, changes in costs associated with environmental remediation services and equipment and the possibility of existing legal claims giving rise to additional liabilities. Therefore, although we believe that the reserve is adequate, costs incurred may be in excess of the reserve and may potentially have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

23

Table of Contents

Bay Springs Pipeline Release. During February 2013, we experienced a crude oil release of approximately 120 barrels on a portion of one of our pipelines near Bay Springs, Mississippi. Most of the released oil was contained within our pipeline right of way, but some of the released oil entered a nearby waterway where it was contained with booms. The EPA has issued an administrative order requiring us to take various actions in response to the release, including remediation, reporting and other actions. We have satisfied the requirements of the administrative order; however, we may be subjected to a civil penalty. The aggregate cost to clean up and remediate the site was approximately \$6 million.

Kemp River Pipeline Release. During May and June 2013, two separate releases were discovered on our Kemp River pipeline in Northern Alberta, Canada that, in the aggregate, resulted in the release of approximately 700 barrels of condensate and light crude oil. Clean-up and remediation activities are being conducted in cooperation with the applicable regulatory agencies. AER's final investigation is not complete. To date, no charges, fines or penalties have been assessed against PMC with respect to these releases; however, it is possible that fines or penalties may be assessed against PMC in the future. We estimate that the aggregate clean-up and remediation costs associated with these releases will be approximately \$15 million. Through September 30, 2014, we spent approximately \$8 million in connection with clean-up and remediation activities.

Note 12—Operating Segments

We manage our operations through three operating segments: (i) Transportation, (ii) Facilities and (iii) Supply and Logistics. Our Chief Operating Decision Maker (our Chief Executive Officer) evaluates segment performance based on measures including segment profit and maintenance capital investment. We define segment profit as revenues and equity earnings in unconsolidated entities less (i) purchases and related costs, (ii) field operating costs and (iii) segment general and administrative expenses. Each of the items above excludes depreciation and amortization. Maintenance capital consists of capital expenditures for the replacement of partially or fully depreciated assets in order to maintain the operating and/or earnings capacity of our existing assets.

24

Table of Contents

The following table reflects certain financial data for each segment for the periods indicated (in millions):

	Tran	sportation		Facilities	Sup	ply and Logistics		Total
Three Months Ended September 30, 2014		_						_
Revenues (1):								
External Customers	\$	198	\$	141	\$	10,788	\$	11,127
Intersegment ⁽²⁾		226		140		5		371
Total revenues of reportable segments	\$	424	\$	281	\$	10,793	\$	11,498
Equity earnings in unconsolidated entities	\$	29	\$	_	\$	_	\$	29
Segment profit (3) (4)	\$	231	\$	147	\$	152	\$	530
Maintenance capital	\$	35	\$	19	\$	2	\$	56
Three Months Ended September 30, 2013								
Revenues:								
External Customers	\$	179	\$	138	\$	10,386	\$	10,703
Intersegment ⁽²⁾		199		142		_		341
Total revenues of reportable segments	\$	378	\$	280	\$	10,386	\$	11,044
Equity earnings in unconsolidated entities	\$	19	\$	_	\$	_	\$	19
Segment profit (3) (4)	\$	198	\$	146	\$	64	\$	408
Maintenance capital	\$	29	\$	6	\$	7	\$	42
	Tran	sportation		Facilities	Sup	ply and Logistics		Total
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014	Tran	sportation		Facilities	Sup	ply and Logistics		Total
Revenues (1):			<u> </u>				¢	
Revenues ⁽¹⁾ : External Customers	Tran	574	\$	443	Sup \$	32,988	\$	34,005
Revenues (1): External Customers Intersegment (2)	\$	574 648		443 415	\$	32,988		34,005 1,096
Revenues (1): External Customers Intersegment (2) Total revenues of reportable segments		574 648 1,222	\$	443	\$	32,988	\$	34,005 1,096 35,101
Revenues (1): External Customers Intersegment (2) Total revenues of reportable segments Equity earnings in unconsolidated entities	\$ \$ \$	574 648 1,222 73	\$	443 415 858 —	\$ \$	32,988 33 33,021	\$	34,005 1,096 35,101 73
Revenues ⁽¹⁾ : External Customers Intersegment ⁽²⁾ Total revenues of reportable segments Equity earnings in unconsolidated entities Segment profit ⁽³⁾ ⁽⁴⁾	\$ \$ \$ \$	574 648 1,222 73 658	\$ \$ \$	443 415 858 — 435	\$ \$ \$	32,988 33 33,021 — 534	\$ \$ \$	34,005 1,096 35,101 73 1,627
Revenues (1): External Customers Intersegment (2) Total revenues of reportable segments Equity earnings in unconsolidated entities	\$ \$ \$	574 648 1,222 73	\$	443 415 858 —	\$ \$	32,988 33 33,021	\$	34,005 1,096 35,101 73
Revenues (1): External Customers Intersegment (2) Total revenues of reportable segments Equity earnings in unconsolidated entities Segment profit (3) (4) Maintenance capital	\$ \$ \$ \$	574 648 1,222 73 658	\$ \$ \$	443 415 858 — 435	\$ \$ \$	32,988 33 33,021 — 534	\$ \$ \$	34,005 1,096 35,101 73 1,627
Revenues (1): External Customers Intersegment (2) Total revenues of reportable segments Equity earnings in unconsolidated entities Segment profit (3) (4) Maintenance capital Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013	\$ \$ \$ \$	574 648 1,222 73 658	\$ \$ \$	443 415 858 — 435	\$ \$ \$	32,988 33 33,021 — 534	\$ \$ \$	34,005 1,096 35,101 73 1,627
Revenues (1): External Customers Intersegment (2) Total revenues of reportable segments Equity earnings in unconsolidated entities Segment profit (3) (4) Maintenance capital Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013 Revenues:	\$ \$ \$ \$	574 648 1,222 73 658 111	\$ \$ \$ \$	443 415 858 — 435 34	\$ \$ \$ \$	32,988 33 33,021 — 534 6	\$ \$ \$ \$	34,005 1,096 35,101 73 1,627 151
Revenues (1): External Customers Intersegment (2) Total revenues of reportable segments Equity earnings in unconsolidated entities Segment profit (3) (4) Maintenance capital Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013 Revenues: External Customers	\$ \$ \$ \$	574 648 1,222 73 658 111	\$ \$ \$	443 415 858 — 435 34	\$ \$ \$	32,988 33 33,021 — 534 6	\$ \$ \$	34,005 1,096 35,101 73 1,627 151
Revenues (1): External Customers Intersegment (2) Total revenues of reportable segments Equity earnings in unconsolidated entities Segment profit (3) (4) Maintenance capital Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013 Revenues: External Customers Intersegment (2)	\$ \$ \$ \$	574 648 1,222 73 658 111	\$ \$ \$ \$	443 415 858 — 435 34 558 425	\$ \$ \$ \$	32,988 33 33,021 — 534 6	\$ \$ \$ \$	34,005 1,096 35,101 73 1,627 151 31,617 1,021
Revenues (1): External Customers Intersegment (2) Total revenues of reportable segments Equity earnings in unconsolidated entities Segment profit (3) (4) Maintenance capital Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013 Revenues: External Customers Intersegment (2) Total revenues of reportable segments	\$ \$ \$ \$	574 648 1,222 73 658 111 517 594 1,111	\$ \$ \$	443 415 858 — 435 34	\$ \$ \$ \$	32,988 33 33,021 — 534 6	\$ \$ \$ \$	34,005 1,096 35,101 73 1,627 151 31,617 1,021 32,638
Revenues (1): External Customers Intersegment (2) Total revenues of reportable segments Equity earnings in unconsolidated entities Segment profit (3) (4) Maintenance capital Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013 Revenues: External Customers Intersegment (2) Total revenues of reportable segments Equity earnings in unconsolidated entities	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	574 648 1,222 73 658 111 517 594 1,111 42	\$ \$ \$ \$	443 415 858 — 435 34 558 425 983	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$	32,988 33 33,021 — 534 6	\$ \$ \$ \$	34,005 1,096 35,101 73 1,627 151 31,617 1,021 32,638 42
Revenues (1): External Customers Intersegment (2) Total revenues of reportable segments Equity earnings in unconsolidated entities Segment profit (3) (4) Maintenance capital Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013 Revenues: External Customers Intersegment (2) Total revenues of reportable segments	\$ \$ \$ \$	574 648 1,222 73 658 111 517 594 1,111	\$ \$ \$	443 415 858 — 435 34 558 425	\$ \$ \$ \$	32,988 33 33,021 — 534 6	\$ \$ \$ \$	34,005 1,096 35,101 73 1,627 151 31,617 1,021 32,638

⁽¹⁾ Effective January 1, 2014, our natural gas sales and costs, primarily attributable to the activities performed by our natural gas storage commercial optimization group, are reported in the Supply and Logistics segment. Such items were previously reported in the Facilities segment.

25

Table of Contents

Segment revenues and purchases and related costs include intersegment amounts. Intersegment sales are conducted at posted tariff rates, rates similar to those charged to third parties or rates that we believe approximate market. For further discussion, see "Analysis of Operating Segments" under Item 7 of our 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Supply and Logistics segment profit includes interest expense (related to hedged inventory purchases) of \$4 million and \$8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and \$11 million and \$21 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

	Three Mon Septem			onths Ended ember 30,
	2014	2013	2014	2013
Segment profit	\$ 530	\$ 408	\$ 1,627	7 \$ 1,640
Depreciation and amortization	(97)	(93) (293	3) (265)
Interest expense, net	(85)	(72) (240	5) (224)
Other income/(expense), net	(4)	3	(2	2) 2
Income before tax	 344	246	1,080	1,153
Income tax expense	(20)	(9) (90	(79)
Net income	 324	237	990	5 1,074
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests	(1)	(6) (2	2) (22)
Net income attributable to PAA	\$ 323	\$ 231	\$ 994	\$ 1,052

Note 13—Related Party Transactions

See Note 14 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part IV of our 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K for a complete discussion of our related party transactions.

Occidental Petroleum Corporation

As of September 30, 2014, a subsidiary of Occidental Petroleum Corporation ("Oxy") owned approximately 25% of our general partner and had a representative on the board of directors of GP LLC. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, we recognized sales and transportation revenues and purchased petroleum products from companies affiliated with Oxy. These transactions were conducted at posted tariff rates or prices that we believe approximate market. See detail below (in millions):

		Three Mon Septem	d	Nine Months Ended September 30,					
	20	14	2013		2014		2013		
Revenues	\$	369	\$ 441	\$	812	\$	1,135		
Purchases and related costs	\$	233	\$ 229	\$	701	\$	604		

We currently have a netting arrangement with Oxy. Our gross receivable and payable amounts with affiliates of Oxy were as follows (in millions):

		nber 30, 114	December 31, 2013		
Trade accounts receivable and other receivables		\$ 274	\$	133	
Accounts payable		\$ 233	\$	181	
	26				

Table of Contents

Note 14—Subsequent Events

As of November 5, 2014, we entered into a definitive purchase and sale agreement with Oxy that provides for our purchase of Oxy's 50% interest in BridgeTex Pipeline Company LLC ("BridgeTex") for \$1.075 billion. BridgeTex owns a 300,000 barrel-per-day crude oil pipeline ("BridgeTex Pipeline") that extends from Colorado City in West Texas to Texas City. The remaining 50% interest in BridgeTex is owned by Magellan Midstream Partners, L.P. ("MMP"), which is also the operator of the BridgeTex Pipeline. Contemporaneous with the purchase by us of Oxy's 50% interest in BridgeTex, BridgeTex has agreed to sell the southern leg of the pipeline system which runs from Houston to Texas City (the "Texas City Leg") to MMP, and MMP has agreed to enter into a long term capacity lease with BridgeTex pursuant to which BridgeTex shippers will have access to capacity on the Texas City Leg.

In addition to customary closing conditions and the contemporaneous consummation of the sale of the Texas City Leg and execution of the capacity lease, our acquisition of Oxy's 50% interest in BridgeTex is subject to the completion by PAGP, prior to December 31, 2014, of an underwritten secondary offering pursuant to which Oxy would sell a portion of its equity interest in PAGP. In order to facilitate such offering and the overall transaction, (i) the board of directors of PAGP's general partner has agreed to an early release of the 15-month lock-up arrangement that was originally imposed on certain PAGP equity owners, including Oxy, in connection with PAGP's initial public offering in October 2013, (ii) certain affiliates of Kayne Anderson Investment Management, Inc., The Energy & Minerals Group and PAA Management, L.P. have agreed to waive their participation rights in such offering and (iii) Oxy, certain affiliates of Kayne Anderson Investment Management, Inc., The Energy & Minerals Group and PAA Management, L.P. have agreed to refrain from selling any of their respective interests in PAGP for a period of up to 90 days following such offering. If an offering is not completed prior to December 31, 2014, both PAA and Oxy have the right to terminate the purchase and sale agreement.

27

Table of Contents

Item 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Introduction

The following discussion is intended to provide investors with an understanding of our financial condition and results of our operations and should be read in conjunction with our historical Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying notes and Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations as presented in our 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K. For more detailed information regarding the basis of

presentation for the following financial information, see the condensed consolidated financial statements and related notes that are contained in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Our discussion and analysis includes the following:

- Executive Summary
- · Acquisitions and Internal Growth Projects
- · Results of Operations
- · Liquidity and Capital Resources
- · Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
- Recent Accounting Pronouncements
- Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
- · Forward-Looking Statements

Executive Summary

Company Overview

We own and operate midstream energy infrastructure and provide logistics services for crude oil, NGL, natural gas and refined products. We own an extensive network of pipeline transportation, terminalling, storage and gathering assets in key crude oil and NGL producing basins and transportation corridors and at major market hubs in the United States and Canada. We were formed in 1998, and our operations are conducted directly and indirectly through our operating subsidiaries and are managed through three operating segments: (i) Transportation, (ii) Facilities and (iii) Supply and Logistics.

Overview of Operating Results, Capital Investments and Significant Activities

During the first nine months of 2014, we recognized net income attributable to PAA of \$994 million as compared to net income attributable to PAA of \$1.052 billion recognized during the first nine months of 2013. These results include total segment profit that was relatively flat between periods, but higher costs as discussed further below.

Our segment profit includes favorable results from our Transportation segment, primarily driven by the continued increase in North American crude oil production and our related, recently completed internal growth projects. These favorable results were offset by less favorable results from our NGL marketing activities in our Supply and Logistics segment, partially offset by a favorable period-over-period impact from the mark-to-market of derivative instruments. Our results were also impacted by decreased margins from our crude oil marketing activities; however, these unfavorable results were primarily attributable to the comparative first-quarter periods, as we experienced more favorable results in the second and third quarters of 2014. In addition, our Facilities and Supply and Logistics segments were negatively impacted by costs incurred in our natural gas storage activities to manage deliverability requirements in conjunction with the severe cold weather experienced during the first quarter of 2014.

Other significant items during the period were:

- · Increased depreciation and amortization expense resulting from internal growth projects completed since September 30, 2013 and accelerated depreciation on certain pipeline assets;
- · Increased interest expense resulting from higher average debt outstanding during the 2014 period;
- · Increased income tax expense resulting from higher year over year earnings from our taxable Canadian operations; and
- · A reduction in net income attributable to noncontrolling interests.

28

Table of Contents

Acquisitions and Internal Growth Projects

The following table summarizes our capital expenditures for acquisitions, internal growth projects and maintenance capital for the periods indicated (in millions):

	 Nine Mon Septem	ed
	 2014	2013
Acquisition capital	\$ 10	\$ 19
Internal growth projects	1,552	1,253
Maintenance capital	151	124
Total	\$ 1,713	\$ 1,396

The following table summarizes our more notable projects in progress during 2014 and the forecasted expenditures for the year ending December 31, 2014 (in millions):

Projects	2014
Permian Basin Area Projects	\$425
Cactus Pipeline	350
Rail Terminal Projects (1)	235
Ft. Sask Facility Projects / NGL Line	130
Eagle Ford JV Project	110
Western Oklahoma Extension	80
Mississippian Lime Pipeline	55
White Cliffs Expansion	40
Line 63 Reactivation	35
Natural Gas Storage Expansions	35
Diamond Pipeline	25
St. James Facility Expansions	25
Other Projects	505
	\$2,050
Potential Adjustments for Timing / Scope Refinement (2)	-\$100 + \$100
Total Projected Expansion Capital Expenditures	\$1,950 - \$2,150

⁽¹⁾ Includes projects located in or near Bakersfield, CA; Carr, CO; Van Hook, ND; and Kerrobert, Canada.

Results of Operations

We manage our operations through three operating segments: (i) Transportation, (ii) Facilities and (iii) Supply and Logistics. Our Chief Operating Decision Maker (our Chief Executive Officer) evaluates such segment performance based on a variety of measures including segment profit, segment volumes, segment profit per barrel and maintenance capital investment. See Note 18 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part IV of our 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K for further discussion of how we evaluate segment profit.

20

Table of Contents

The following table sets forth an overview of our consolidated financial results calculated in accordance with GAAP (in millions, except per unit data):

	1	Three Mor Septem	0,	 Favora (Unfavor Varia	rable) nce	Nine Months Ended September 30,					Favorable/ (Unfavorable) Variance			
		2014	 2013	 \$	%		2014	_	2013		\$	%		
Transportation segment profit	\$	231	\$ 198	\$ 33	17%	\$	658	\$	522	\$	136	26%		
Facilities segment profit		147	146	1	1%		435		445		(10)	(2)%		
Supply and Logistics segment profit		152	64	88	138%		534		673		(139)	(21)%		
Total segment profit		530	408	122	30%		1,627		1,640		(13)	(1)%		
Depreciation and amortization		(97)	(93)	(4)	(4)%		(293)		(265)		(28)	(11)%		
Interest expense, net		(85)	(72)	(13)	(18)%		(246)		(224)		(22)	(10)%		
Other income/(expense), net		(4)	3	(7)	(233)%		(2)		2		(4)	(200)%		
Income tax expense		(20)	(9)	(11)	(122)%		(90)		(79)		(11)	(14)%		
Net income		324	237	87	37%		996		1,074		(78)	(7)%		
Net income attributable to														
noncontrolling interests		(1)	(6)	5	83%		(2)		(22)		20	91%		
Net income attributable to PAA	\$	323	\$ 231	\$ 92	40%	\$	994	\$	1,052	\$	(58)	(6)%		
Net income attributable to PAA:														
Basic net income per limited partner														
unit	\$	0.52	\$ 0.38	\$ 0.14	37%	\$	1.71	\$	2.23	\$	(0.52)	(23)%		
Diluted net income per limited														
partner unit	\$	0.52	\$ 0.38	\$ 0.14	37%	\$	1.70	\$	2.22	\$	(0.52)	(23)%		
Basic weighted average limited														
partner units outstanding		370	343	27	8%		365		340		25	7%		
Diluted weighted average limited														
partner units outstanding		371	345	26	8%		367		342		25	7%		
partiter unito odistanding		5/1	545	20	070		307		5-72		25	7 70		

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

To supplement our financial information presented in accordance with GAAP, management uses additional measures that are known as "non-GAAP financial measures" in its evaluation of past performance and prospects for the future. The primary additional measures used by management are adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization ("adjusted EBITDA") and implied distributable cash flow ("DCF").

Management believes that the presentation of such additional financial measures provides useful information to investors regarding our performance and results of operations because these measures, when used in conjunction with related GAAP financial measures, (i) provide additional information about

Potential variation to current capital costs estimates may result from changes to project design, final cost of materials and labor and timing of incurrence of costs due to uncontrollable factors such as permits, regulatory approvals and weather.

our core operating performance and ability to generate and distribute cash flow, (ii) provide investors with the financial analytical framework upon which management bases financial, operational, compensation and planning decisions and (iii) present measurements that investors, rating agencies and debt holders have indicated are useful in assessing us and our results of operations. These measures may exclude, for example, (i) charges for obligations that are expected to be settled with the issuance of equity instruments, (ii) the mark-to-market adjustment of derivative instruments that are related to underlying activities in another period (or the reversal of such adjustments from a prior period), (iii) items that are not indicative of our core operating results and business outlook and/or (iv) other items that we believe should be excluded in understanding our core operating performance. We have defined all such items hereinafter as "Selected Items Impacting Comparability." These additional financial measures are reconciled to the most directly comparable measures as reported in accordance with GAAP, and should be viewed in addition to, and not in lieu of, our condensed consolidated financial statements and footnotes.

30

Table of Contents

The following table sets forth non-GAAP financial measures that are reconciled to the most directly comparable GAAP measures (in millions):

		Three Mor Septem			Favorable/ (Unfavorable) Variance				Nine Mon Septem		30,	Favorable/ (Unfavorable) Variance		
NT	_	2014	Φ.	2013	ф	\$	<u>%</u>	Φ.	2014	ф	2013	Φ.	\$ (70)	<u>%</u>
Net income	\$	324	\$	237	\$	87	37%	\$	996	\$	1,074	\$	(78)	(7)%
Add:		0.5		70		10	4.007		2.46		22.4		22	100/
Interest expense, net		85		72		13	18%		246		224		22	10%
Income tax expense		20		9		11	122%		90		79		11	14%
Depreciation and amortization		97	_	93	_	4	4%	l -	293	_	265	_	28	11%
EBITDA	\$	526	\$	411	\$	115	28%	\$	1,625	\$	1,642	\$	(17)	(1)%
Selected Items Impacting Comparability of EBITDA														
Gains/(losses) from derivative activities net of inventory														
valuation adjustments (1)	\$	27	\$	(59)	\$	86	146%	\$	77	\$	(9)	\$	86	956%
Equity-indexed compensation	•			()	•						(-)	•		
expense (2)		(12)		(12)		_	%		(48)		(51)		3	6%
Net gain/(loss) on foreign currency		` ′		` ′					. ,		` ′			
revaluation (3)		(16)		2		(18)	(900)%		(10)		5		(15)	(300)%
Selected Items Impacting Comparability														
of EBITDA	\$	(1)	\$	(69)	\$	68	99%	\$	19	\$	(55)	\$	74	135%
EBITDA	\$	526	\$	411	\$	115	28%	\$	1,625	\$	1,642	\$	(17)	(1)%
Selected Items Impacting														
Comparability of EBITDA		1		69		(68)	(99)%		(19)		55		(74)	(135)%
Adjusted EBITDA	\$	527	\$	480	\$	47	10%	\$	1,606	\$	1,697	\$	(91)	(5)%
Adjusted EBITDA	\$	527	\$	480	\$	47	10%	\$	1,606	\$	1,697	\$	(91)	(5)%
Interest expense, net		(85)		(72)		(13)	(18)%		(246)		(224)		(22)	(10)%
Maintenance capital (4)		(56)		(42)		(14)	(33)%		(151)		(124)		(27)	(22)%
Current income tax expense		(10)		(17)		7	41%		(62)		(69)		7	10%
Equity earnings in unconsolidated		` ′		` ′					` ´		· · ·			
entities, net of distributions		(6)		(6)		_	%		1		(7)		8	114%
Distributions to noncontrolling														
interests ⁽⁵⁾		(1)		(13)		12	92%		(3)		(38)		35	92%
Implied DCF	\$	369	\$	330	\$	39	12%	\$	1,145	\$	1,235	\$	(90)	(7)%
Less: Distributions paid (5)		(374)		(305)					(1,078)		(886)			
DCF Excess/(Shortage) (6)	\$	(5)	\$	25				\$	67	\$	349			

We use derivative instruments for risk management purposes and our related processes include specific identification of hedging instruments to an underlying hedged transaction. Although we identify an underlying transaction for each derivative instrument we enter into, there may not be an accounting hedge relationship between the instrument and the underlying transaction. In the course of evaluating our results of operations, we identify the earnings that were recognized during the period related to derivative instruments for which the identified underlying transaction does not occur in the current period and exclude the related gains and losses in determining Adjusted EBITDA. We also exclude the impact of corresponding inventory valuation adjustments, as applicable. See Note 10 to our condensed consolidated financial statements for a comprehensive discussion regarding our derivatives and risk management activities.

31

Table of Contents

Our total equity-indexed compensation expense includes expense associated with awards that will or may be settled in units and awards that will or may be settled in cash. The awards that will or may be settled in units are included in our diluted earnings per unit calculation when the applicable performance criteria have been met. We consider the compensation expense associated with these awards as a selected item impacting comparability as the dilutive impact of the outstanding awards is included in our diluted earnings per unit calculation and the majority of the awards are expected to be settled in units. The portion of compensation expense associated with awards that are certain to be settled in cash is not

considered a selected item impacting comparability. See Note 15 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part IV of our 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K for a comprehensive discussion regarding our equity-indexed compensation plans.

- During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, there were fluctuations in the value of the Canadian dollar ("CAD") to the U.S. dollar ("USD"), resulting in gains and losses that were not related to our core operating results for the period and were thus classified as selected items impacting comparability. See Note 10 to our condensed consolidated financial statements for further discussion regarding our currency exchange rate risk hedging activities.
- (4) Maintenance capital expenditures are defined as capital expenditures for the replacement of partially or fully depreciated assets in order to maintain the operating and/or earnings capacity of our existing assets.
- (5) Includes distributions that pertain to the current period's net income and are paid in the subsequent period.
- (6) Excess DCF is retained to establish reserves for future distributions, capital expenditures and other partnership purposes.

Analysis of Operating Segments

Transportation Segment

Our Transportation segment operations generally consist of fee-based activities associated with transporting crude oil and NGL on pipelines, gathering systems, trucks and barges. The Transportation segment generates revenue through a combination of tariffs, third-party leases of pipeline capacity and other transportation fees.

 $The following \ table \ sets \ for th \ operating \ results \ from \ our \ Transportation \ segment \ for \ the \ periods \ indicated:$

Operating Results (1)	Three Months Ended September 30,			Favorable/ (Unfavorable) Variance				Nine Mon Septen	 	Favorable/ (Unfavorable) Variance			
(in millions, except per barrel data)		2014		2013		\$	%		2014	 2013		\$	%
Revenues													
Tariff activities	\$	372	\$	329	\$	43	13%	\$	1,063	\$ 959	\$	104	11%
Trucking		52		49		3	6%		159	152		7	5%
Total transportation revenues		424		378		46	12%		1,222	1,111		111	10%
Costs and Expenses													
Trucking costs		(38)		(35)		(3)	(9)%		(116)	(109)		(7)	(6)%
Field operating costs ⁽²⁾		(153)		(131)		(22)	(17)%		(419)	(402)		(17)	(4)%
Equity-indexed compensation expense -													
operations		(4)		(3)		(1)	(33)%		(14)	(15)		1	7%
Segment general and administrative expenses (2)(3)		(20)		(25)		5	20%		(62)	(74)		12	16%
Equity-indexed compensation expense -													
general and administrative		(7)		(5)		(2)	(40)%		(26)	(31)		5	16%
Equity earnings in unconsolidated entities		29		19		10	53%		73	42		31	74%
Segment profit	\$	231	\$	198	\$	33	17%	\$	658	\$ 522	\$	136	26%
Maintenance capital	\$	35	\$	29	\$	(6)	(21)%	\$	111	\$ 84	\$	(27)	(32)%
Segment profit per barrel	\$	0.59	\$	0.58	\$	0.01	2%	\$	0.60	\$ 0.52	\$	0.08	15%

32

Table of Contents

Average Daily Volumes	Three Montl Septemb		Favorable (Unfavoral Variance	ole)	Nine Month Septemb		Favorable/ (Unfavorable) Variance		
(in thousands of barrels per day) (4)	2014	2013	Volumes	%	2014	2013	Volumes	%	
Tariff activities									
Crude Oil Pipelines									
All American	40	40	_	—%	37	39	(2)	(5)%	
Bakken Area Systems	164	136	28	21%	147	130	17	13%	
Basin / Mesa	743	731	12	2%	734	712	22	3%	
Capline	178	147	31	21%	142	153	(11)	(7)%	
Eagle Ford Area Systems	247	119	128	108%	215	81	134	165%	
Line 63 / Line 2000	126	113	13	12%	119	113	6	5%	
Manito	44	47	(3)	(6)%	44	46	(2)	(4)%	
Mid-Continent Area Systems	346	256	90	35%	340	277	63	23%	
Permian Basin Area Systems	776	593	183	31%	765	540	225	42%	
Rainbow	104	128	(24)	(19)%	111	125	(14)	(11)%	
Rangeland	61	54	7	13%	65	59	6	10%	
Salt Lake City Area Systems	140	131	9	7%	134	132	2	2%	
South Saskatchewan	62	56	6	11%	61	50	11	22%	
White Cliffs	33	22	11	50%	27	22	5	23%	
Other	831	738	93	13%	747	737	10	1%	
NGL Pipelines									
Co-Ed	57	56	1	2%	56	55	1	2%	
Other	143	200	(57)	(29)%	127	190	(63)	(33)%	
Refined Products Pipelines	_	54	(54)	(100)%	_	88	(88)	(100)%	
Tariff activities total	4,095	3,621	474	13%	3,871	3,549	322	9%	

Trucking	131	120	11	9%	129	113	16	14%
Transportation segment total	4,226	3,741	485	13%	4,000	3,662	338	9%

- (1) Revenues and costs and expenses include intersegment amounts.
- (2) Field operating costs and Segment general and administrative expenses exclude equity-indexed compensation expense, which is presented separately in the table above.
- (3) Segment general and administrative expenses reflect direct costs attributable to each segment and an allocation of other expenses to the segments. The proportional allocations by segment require judgment by management and are based on the business activities that exist during each period.
- Volumes associated with assets employed through acquisitions and internal growth projects represent total volumes (attributable to our interest) for the number of days we employed the assets divided by the number of days in the period.

Tariffs and other fees on our pipeline systems vary by receipt point and delivery point. The segment profit generated by our tariff and other feerelated activities depends on the volumes transported on the pipeline and the level of the tariff and other fees charged as well as the fixed and variable field costs of operating the pipeline. Revenue from our pipeline capacity leases generally reflects a negotiated amount.

The following is a discussion of items impacting Transportation segment profit and segment profit per barrel for the periods indicated.

Net Operating Revenues and Volumes. As noted in the table above, our total Transportation segment revenues, net of trucking costs, and volumes increased for both the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013. Our Transportation segment results for the comparative periods were impacted by the following:

33

Table of Contents

- · North American Crude Oil Production and Related Expansion Projects The increase in North American crude oil production has had a favorable impact on volumes and revenues on our existing pipeline systems and has also provided opportunities for midstream infrastructure development in production growth areas. The resulting increases in volumes for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 over the comparable 2013 periods were most notably on our Permian Basin, Eagle Ford and Mid-Continent Area Systems. We estimate that increased production combined with our recently completed internal growth projects increased revenues by \$20 million and \$70 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014, respectively, compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013.
- · Loss Allowance Revenue As is common in the pipeline transportation industry, our tariffs incorporate a loss allowance factor that is intended to offset losses due to evaporation, measurement and other losses in transit. We value the variance of allowance volumes to actual losses at the estimated net realizable value (including the impact of gains and losses from derivative-related activities) at the time the variance occurred and the result is recorded as either an increase or decrease to tariff revenues. The loss allowance revenue increased by \$7 million and \$37 million, respectively, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 driven primarily by higher volumes.
- · Rate Changes Revenues on our pipelines are impacted by various rate changes that may occur during the period. These primarily include the indexing of rates on our FERC regulated pipelines, rate increases or decreases on our intrastate and Canadian pipelines or other negotiated rate changes. We estimate that the net impact of rate changes on our pipelines increased revenues by \$17 million and \$30 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014, respectively, compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013.
- · Sale of Refined Products Pipelines We sold certain refined products pipeline systems and related assets in July 2013 and November 2013. As we did not own these assets during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014, our revenues were lower by \$7 million and \$27 million, respectively, and volumes were lower by 54,000 and 88,000 barrels per day, respectively, as compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013.
- · Foreign Exchange Impact Revenues and expenses from our Canadian based subsidiaries, which use the Canadian dollar as their functional currency, are translated at the prevailing average exchange rates for each month. The average CAD to USD exchange rates for the three months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 were \$1.09 CAD: \$1.00 USD and \$1.04 CAD: \$1.00 USD, respectively. The average CAD to USD exchange rates for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 were \$1.09 CAD: \$1.00 USD and \$1.02 CAD: \$1.00 USD, respectively. Therefore, we estimate that revenues from our Canadian pipeline systems and trucking operations were unfavorably impacted by \$5 million and \$20 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014, respectively, compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 due to the depreciation of the Canadian dollar relative to the U.S. dollar.

Additional noteworthy volume and revenue variances on our pipelines for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 were (i) increased volumes and revenues on our Rangeland, South Saskatchewan and Co-Ed pipelines, as these pipelines were shut down during a portion of the second and third quarters of 2013 due to high river flow rates and flooding in the surrounding area, (ii) incremental volumes and revenues from our Pascagoula, Wascana and Bakken North pipelines, which were placed into service during the second quarter of 2014, (iii) incremental revenues from increased pumpover volumes at our Basin pipeline terminal, (iv) decreased volumes and revenues on our Rainbow pipeline due to (a) lower producer volumes and (b) operational issues during September 2014, (v) higher revenues resulting from a reclassification of certain of our Canadian storage facilities to our Transportation segment during the second quarter of 2014, (vi) increased volumes and revenues on our Line 2000 pipeline for the three-month comparable period due to increased refiner demand for heavy volumes, (vii) increased volumes and revenues on our Capline pipeline for the three-month comparative period due to the timing of a refinery turnaround, which occurred in the third quarter of 2013 and (viii) decreased volumes and revenues on certain of our NGL pipelines due to (a) the discontinuation in the fourth quarter of 2013 of an agreement to transport volumes on a pipeline and (b) the impact of netting joint venture related volumes to our share on a pipeline during 2014, which did not affect revenues.

Field Operating Costs. Field operating costs (excluding equity-indexed compensation expenses) increased during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 due to (i) a change in classification of certain costs from General and

Table of Contents

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses (excluding equity-indexed compensation expenses) decreased during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 primarily due to a change in classification of certain costs to Field Operating Costs.

Maintenance Capital. Maintenance capital consists of capital expenditures for the replacement of partially or fully depreciated assets in order to maintain the operating and/or earnings capacity of our existing assets. The increase in maintenance capital for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 is primarily due to increased investments on integrity-related projects.

Equity-Indexed Compensation Expense. On a consolidated basis across all segments, equity-indexed compensation expense increased for the three months ended September 30, 2014 compared to the same period in 2013, primarily due to a smaller impact of the decrease in unit price during the period compared to the impact of the decrease in unit price for the same period in 2013. Consolidated equity-indexed compensation expense decreased for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to the same period in 2013, primarily due to a less significant impact of the increase in unit price during the nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to the same period in 2013.

Allocations of equity-indexed compensation expense vary over time (i) between field operating costs and general and administrative expenses and (ii) between segments and could result in variances in those expense categories or segments that differ from the consolidated variance explanations above. See Note 15 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part IV of our 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information regarding our equity-indexed compensation plans.

Equity Earnings in Unconsolidated Entities. The favorable variance in equity earnings in unconsolidated entities for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 was largely due to increased throughput on the Eagle Ford joint venture pipeline as a result of increased production, as discussed above, and increased throughput on the White Cliffs pipeline due to an expansion of the pipeline that was placed into service in July 2014.

Facilities Segment

Our Facilities segment operations generally consist of fee-based activities associated with providing storage, terminalling and throughput services for crude oil, refined products, NGL and natural gas, as well as NGL fractionation and isomerization services and natural gas and condensate processing services. The Facilities segment generates revenue through a combination of month-to-month and multi-year agreements and processing arrangements.

The following table sets forth operating results from our Facilities segment for the periods indicated:

Operating Results (1)	Three Months Ended September 30,				Favorabl (Unfavoral Variance	Nine Months Ended September 30,					Favorable/ (Unfavorable) Variance			
(in millions, except per barrel data)		2014		2013	\$	%		2014		2013		\$	%	
Revenues	\$	281	\$	257	\$ 24	9%	\$	858	\$	787	\$	71	9%	
Natural gas sales ⁽²⁾				23	(23)	(100)%		_		196		(196)	(100)%	
Storage related costs (natural gas related)		(9)		(4)	(5)	(125)%		(47)		(12)		(35)	(292)%	
Natural gas sales costs ⁽²⁾				(19)	19	100%				(184)		184	100%	
Field operating costs (3)		(104)		(92)	(12)	(13)%		(307)		(272)		(35)	(13)%	
Equity-indexed compensation expense -														
operations		(1)		_	(1)	N/A		(4)		(2)		(2)	(100)%	
Segment general and administrative														
expenses (3) (4)		(16)		(15)	(1)	(7)%		(46)		(48)		2	4%	
Equity-indexed compensation expense -														
general and administrative		(4)		(4)	_	%		(19)		(20)		1	5%	
Segment profit	\$	147	\$	146	\$ 1	1%	\$	435	\$	445	\$	(10)	(2)%	
Maintenance capital	\$	19	\$	6	\$ (13)	(217)%	\$	34	\$	23	\$	(11)	(48)%	
Segment profit per barrel	\$	0.40	\$	0.41	\$ (0.01)	(2)%	\$	0.40	\$	0.41	\$	(0.01)	(2)%	

35

Table of Contents

	Three Mont Septemb		Favor (Unfavo Varia	orable)	Nine Mont Septem		Favorable/ (Unfavorable) Variance			
Volumes (5)	2014	2013	Volumes	%	2014	2013	Volumes	%		
Crude oil, refined products and NGL										
terminalling and storage (average										
monthly capacity in millions of										
barrels)	95	94	1	1%	95	94	1	1%		
Rail load / unload volumes (average volumes in thousands of barrels per										
day)	241	218	23	11%	232	221	11	<u> </u>		
Natural gas storage (average monthly	97	97		<u> </u>	97	96	1	1%		

W	orking capacity in billions of cubic								
fe	et)								
NGL	fractionation (average volumes in								
th	ousands of barrels per day)	104	106	(2)	(2)%	94	99	(5)	(5)%
Facil	lities segment total (average monthly								
VO	lumes in millions of barrels) (6)	121	120	1	1%	121	120	1	1%

- (1) Revenues and costs and expenses include intersegment amounts.
- ⁽²⁾ Effective January 1, 2014, our natural gas sales and costs, primarily attributable to the activities performed by our natural gas storage commercial optimization group, are reported in the Supply and Logistics segment.
- (3) Field operating costs and Segment general and administrative expenses exclude equity-indexed compensation expense, which is presented separately in the table above.
- (4) Segment general and administrative expenses reflect direct costs attributable to each segment and an allocation of other expenses to the segments.

 The proportional allocations by segment require judgment by management and are based on the business activities that exist during each period.
- Volumes associated with assets employed through acquisitions and internal growth projects represent total volumes for the number of months we employed the assets divided by the number of months in the period.
- Facilities segment total is calculated as the sum of: (i) crude oil, refined products and NGL terminalling and storage capacity; (ii) rail load and unload volumes multiplied by the number of days in the period and divided by the number of months in the period; (iii) natural gas storage working capacity divided by 6 to account for the 6:1 mcf of gas to crude Btu equivalent ratio and further divided by 1,000 to convert to monthly volumes in millions; and (iv) NGL fractionation volumes multiplied by the number of days in the period and divided by the number of months in the period.

The following is a discussion of items impacting Facilities segment profit and segment profit per barrel for the periods indicated.

Net Operating Revenues and Volumes. As noted in the table above, our Facilities segment revenues, less storage related costs, increased during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 as compared to the same periods of 2013. Total Facilities segment volumes were relatively consistent over the periods presented. Variances between the comparative periods were driven by:

· NGL Fractionation, NGL Storage and Natural Gas Processing Activities — Increased net revenues from our NGL fractionation and storage and natural gas processing activities of \$11 million and \$33 million, respectively, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, were largely driven by higher facility fee revenues due to rate increases at certain of our storage and fractionation facilities, which more than offset the impact of lower fractionation volumes during the 2014 periods.

These increases in NGL revenues include estimated unfavorable foreign currency impacts of \$3 million and \$13 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014, respectively, as compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 due to the depreciation of the Canadian dollar relative to the U.S. dollar. The average CAD to USD exchange rates for the three months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 were \$1.09 CAD: \$1.00 USD and \$1.04 CAD: \$1.00 USD, respectively. The average CAD to USD exchange rates for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 were \$1.09 CAD: \$1.00 USD and \$1.02 CAD: \$1.00 USD, respectively.

36

Table of Contents

- · Rail Terminals Revenues from rail load and unload activities increased by \$3 million and \$5 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014, respectively, compared to the same periods in 2013. These increases were due to new rail terminals that came on line in the fourth quarter of 2013, partially offset by the unfavorable impact of rail delays and lower volumes at certain of our existing rail terminals during the comparative 2014 periods. The nine-month 2014 period was further unfavorably impacted by weather-related issues at certain of our terminals during the first quarter of 2014.
- · Condensate Processing Activities Increased revenues from our condensate processing activities of \$2 million and \$7 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014, respectively, compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 were largely driven by the start-up and subsequent expansion of our Eagle Ford processing facility.
- Crude Oil Storage Revenues from our crude oil storage activities increased by \$3 million and \$4 million, respectively, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 over the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, primarily due to an expansion at our St. James terminal and increased throughput at our Cushing and Yorktown terminals. However, such results were partially offset by lower net revenues from certain storage facilities in California and the East Coast due to decreased demand, as well as the reclassification of certain of our Canadian storage facilities to our Transportation segment during the second quarter of 2014.
- Natural Gas Storage Operations Net revenues from our natural gas storage operations decreased by approximately \$5 million and \$26 million during the three and nine month 2014 periods, respectively, primarily due to less favorable storage rates on contracts that renewed or replaced expiring contracts. The nine-month 2014 period was further unfavorably impacted by costs incurred in our natural gas storage activities to manage deliverability requirements in conjunction with the extended period of severe cold weather experienced during the first quarter of 2014.

Field Operating Costs. Field operating costs (excluding equity-indexed compensation expenses) increased during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 due to (i) increased costs for rail facilities which came on line in the fourth quarter of 2013, (ii) a change in classification of certain costs from General and Administrative expenses and (iii) an increase in costs associated with our NGL storage caverns. Higher gas and electricity utility prices in the first and second quarters of 2014 also contributed to an increase in costs for the comparative nine-month periods.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses (excluding equity-indexed compensation expenses) remained relatively consistent for the three months ended September 30, 2014 compared to the three months ended September 30, 2013 and decreased slightly during the comparative nine-month periods. These results reflect the net impact of a decrease in General and Administrative expenses due to a change in classification of certain costs to Field Operating Costs during the 2014 periods partially offset by increased expenses resulting from overall growth in the segment.

Maintenance Capital. The increase in maintenance capital for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 is primarily due to timing of maintenance projects for tanks and other facility assets.

Supply and Logistics Segment

Our revenues from supply and logistics activities reflect the sale of gathered and bulk-purchased crude oil, as well as sales of NGL volumes purchased from suppliers and natural gas sales attributable to the activities performed by our natural gas storage commercial optimization group. We do not anticipate that future changes in revenues resulting from variances in commodity prices will be a primary driver of segment profit. Generally, we expect our segment profit to increase or decrease directionally with (i) increases or decreases in our Supply and Logistics segment volumes (which consist of lease gathering crude oil purchase volumes, NGL sales volumes and waterborne cargos), (ii) demand for lease gathering services we provide producers and (iii) the overall volatility and strength or weakness of market conditions and the allocation of our assets among our various risk management strategies. In addition, the execution of our risk management strategies in conjunction with our assets can provide upside in certain markets.

37

Table of Contents

The following table sets forth operating results from our Supply and Logistics segment for the periods indicated:

Operating Results (1) (2)	Three Months Ended September 30,					Favora (Unfavoi Variai	rable)	Nine Months Ended September 30,					Favorable/ (Unfavorable) Variance			
(in millions, except per barrel data)	2014 2013			2013		\$	%		2014				\$	%		
Revenues	\$	10,793	\$	10,386	\$	407	407 4%		33,021	\$	30,544	\$	2,477	8%		
Purchases and related costs (3)		(10,488)		(10,189)		(299)	(3)%		(32,041)		(29,439)		(2,602)	(9)%		
Field operating costs ⁽⁴⁾		(122)		(103)		(19)	(18)%		(340)		(327)		(13)	(4)%		
Equity-indexed compensation expense																
- operations		_		_		_	%		(2)		(2)		_	%		
Segment general and administrative																
expenses (4) (5)		(25)		(25)		_	%	(79) (77		(77)		(2)	(3)%			
Equity-indexed compensation expense																
 general and administrative 		(6)		(5)		(1)	(20)%		(25)		(26)		1	4%		
Segment profit	\$	152	\$	64	\$	88	138%	\$	534	\$	673	\$	(139)	(21)%		
Maintenance capital	\$	2	\$	7	\$	5	71%	\$	6	\$	17	\$	11	65%		
Segment profit per barrel	\$	1.47	\$	0.69	\$	0.78	113%	\$	1.75	\$	2.33	\$	(0.58)	(25)%		

	Three Mont	hs Ended	Favora (Unfavor		Nine Month	s Ended	Favorad (Unfavora		
Average Daily Volumes	Septemb		Varian		Septemb		Variance		
(in thousands of barrels per day)	2014	2013	Volumes	%	2014	2013	Volumes	%	
Crude oil lease gathering purchases	971	856	115	13%	932	855	77	9%	
NGL sales	153	145	8	6%	188	196	(8)	(4)%	
Waterborne cargos		4	(4)	(100)%		5	(5)	(100)%	
Supply and Logistics segment total	1,124	1,005	119	12%	1,120	1,056	64	6%	

⁽¹⁾ Revenues and costs include intersegment amounts.

- Prior to January 1, 2014, natural gas sales revenues and costs attributable to the activities performed by our natural gas storage commercial optimization group were reported in the Facilities segment.
- Purchases and related costs include interest expense (related to hedged inventory purchases) of \$4 million and \$11 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 and \$8 million and \$21 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, respectively.
- ⁽⁴⁾ Field operating costs and Segment general and administrative expenses exclude equity-indexed compensation expense, which is presented separately in the table above.
- Segment general and administrative expenses reflect direct costs attributable to each segment and an allocation of other expenses to the segments. The proportional allocations by segment require judgment by management and are based on the business activities that exist during each period.

38

Table of Contents

The following table presents the range of the NYMEX West Texas Intermediate benchmark price of crude oil during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013.

			X WTI Dil Price		
	Low			High	
\$		90	\$		106

Three months ended September 30, 2013	\$ 96 \$	112
Nine months ended September 30, 2014	\$ 90 \$	108
Nine months ended September 30, 2013	\$ 86 \$	112

Because the commodities that we buy and sell are generally indexed to the same pricing indices for both the sales and purchases, revenues and costs related to purchases will fluctuate with market prices. However, the margins related to those sales and purchases will not necessarily have a corresponding increase or decrease. The absolute amount of our revenues and purchases increased for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 relative to the comparative periods, primarily resulting from increases in crude oil volumes in 2014, partially offset by decreases in crude oil prices relative to the comparative three-month period.

Generally, we expect a base level of earnings from our Supply and Logistics segment from the assets employed by this segment. This base level may be optimized and enhanced when there is a high level of market volatility, favorable basis differentials and/or a steep contango or backwardated market structure. Also, our NGL marketing operations are sensitive to weather-related demand, particularly during the approximate five-month peak heating season of November through March, and temperature differences from period-to-period may have a significant effect on NGL demand and thus our financial performance.

The following is a discussion of items impacting Supply and Logistics segment profit and segment profit per barrel for the periods indicated.

Net Operating Revenues and Volumes. Our Supply and Logistics segment revenues, net of purchases and related costs, excluding gains and losses from certain derivative activities (see the "Impact from Certain Derivative Activities" section below), increased slightly for the three months ended September 30, 2014 compared to the three months ended September 30, 2013, while such results decreased year-over-year for the nine month comparative periods presented. The following factors impacted revenues and volumes in the comparative periods:

- · NGL Marketing Operations Net revenues from our NGL marketing operations decreased during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 as compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013. This decrease was driven by higher purchases and related costs in the 2014 periods, primarily due to (i) a higher weighted average inventory cost and (ii) increased facility fees. Additionally, NGL margins during the nine-month 2014 period were further impacted by less favorable market conditions, most notably during the second quarter of 2014, as market pricing was stronger in 2013 due to heating requirements during a winter season that extended into the second quarter and greater petrochemical demand for propane.
- · North American Crude Oil Production and Related Market Economics The significant increase in oil and liquids-rich gas production growth in North America has generally created regional supply and demand imbalances due to the lack of sufficient infrastructure to support the movement of such production, which increased certain crude oil location differentials. The lack of existing pipeline takeaway capacity and associated logistical challenges created market conditions that provided opportunities to capture above-baseline margins in our supply and logistics crude oil activities over the last few years.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2013, net revenues from our crude oil supply and logistics activities decreased, as there were fewer opportunities to capture above-baseline margins, particularly in the first quarter of 2014 compared to the first quarter of 2013. However, the widening of certain differentials in the third quarter of 2014 allowed for more opportunities to capture above-baseline margins as compared to the third quarter of 2013, which led to an increase in net revenues from our crude oil supply and logistics activities for the three months ended September 30, 2014 compared to the three months ended September 30, 2013.

We believe the fundamentals of our business remain strong as lease-gathered volumes for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2014 increased by 13% and 9%, respectively, as compared to volumes in the same three and nine month periods in 2013. However, as the midstream infrastructure continues to be developed, we believe a normalization of margins will continue to occur as the logistics challenges are addressed. (See Items 1 and 2 "Business and Properties—Description of Segments and Associated Assets—Supply and Logistics Segment—Impact of Commodity Price Volatility and Dynamic Market Conditions on Our Business Model" included in Part I of our 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K for further discussion regarding our business model, including diversification and utilization of our asset base among varying demand- and supply-driven markets.)

39

Table of Contents

· Natural Gas Storage Commercial Optimization — Our natural gas storage commercial optimization activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 were unfavorably impacted by costs incurred to manage deliverability requirements in conjunction with the extended period of severe cold weather experienced during the first quarter of 2014.

Impact from Certain Derivative Activities. The mark-to-market valuation of certain of our derivative activities impacted our net revenues as shown in the table below (in millions):

		Three Months Ended					Nine Months Ended					
		September 30,										
	2	2014		2013	V	/ariance		2014		2013		Variance
Gains/(losses) from certain derivative activities (1)	\$	29	\$	(57)	\$	86	\$	81	\$	(6)	\$	87

Includes mark-to-market and other gains and losses resulting from certain derivative instruments that are related to underlying activities in future periods or the reversal of mark-to-market gains and losses from the prior period. These amounts are reduced by the net impact of inventory valuation adjustments attributable to inventory hedged by the related derivative and gains recognized in later periods on physical sales of inventory that was previously written down. See Note 10 to our condensed consolidated financial statements for a comprehensive discussion regarding our derivatives and risk management activities.

Field Operating Costs. The increase in field operating costs (excluding equity-indexed compensation expenses) for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 was primarily due to an increase in trucking costs associated with

higher crude oil lease gathered volumes. However, the increase in field operating costs for the comparative nine-month periods was partially offset by a decrease in third-party transportation costs in the first quarter of 2014 as compared to the first quarter of 2013.

Maintenance Capital. The decrease in maintenance capital for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 is primarily due to reduced spending on trucking assets.

Other Income and Expenses

Depreciation and Amortization

The increase in depreciation and amortization expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 over the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 was primarily due to various internal growth projects completed throughout 2013 and 2014, as well as an acceleration of depreciation on certain pipeline assets to reflect a change in their estimated useful lives.

Interest Expense

The increase in interest expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 over the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 resulted from higher average debt outstanding during the 2014 periods, primarily due to (i) our August 2013 issuance of \$700 million, 3.85% senior notes, (ii) our April 2014 issuance of \$700 million, 4.70% senior notes and (iii) our September 2014 issuance of \$750 million, 3.60% senior notes, partially offset by the maturity of our \$250 million, 5.63% senior notes in December 2013.

Other Income/(Expense), Net

Other income/(expense), net in each of the periods presented was primarily comprised of foreign currency gains or losses related to revaluations of CAD-denominated interest receivables associated with our intercompany notes and the impact of related foreign currency hedges.

40

Table of Contents

Income Tax Expense

The increase in income tax expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 was primarily a result of higher year over year earnings from our taxable Canadian operations.

Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests decreased for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 as a result of our completion of the PNG Merger on December 31, 2013, pursuant to which we acquired all of the noncontrolling interests in PNG.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

General

Our primary sources of liquidity are (i) cash flow from operating activities, (ii) borrowings under our commercial paper program or credit facilities and (iii) funds received from sales of equity and debt securities. Our primary cash requirements include, but are not limited to, (i) ordinary course of business uses, such as the payment of amounts related to the purchase of crude oil, NGL and other products and other expenses and interest payments on outstanding debt, (ii) expansion and maintenance activities, (iii) acquisitions of assets or businesses, (iv) repayment of principal on long-term debt and (v) distributions to our unitholders and general partner. We generally expect to fund our short-term cash requirements through cash flow generated from operating activities and/or borrowings under our commercial paper program or credit facilities. In addition, we generally expect to fund our long-term needs, such as those resulting from expansion activities or acquisitions and refinancing our long-term debt, through a variety of sources (either separately or in combination), which may include the sources mentioned above as funding for short-term needs and/or the issuance of additional equity or debt securities. As of September 30, 2014, we had a working capital deficit of \$408 million and approximately \$2.5 billion of liquidity available to meet our ongoing operating, investing and financing needs as noted below (in millions):

		As of
	Septer	mber 30, 2014
Availability under PAA senior unsecured revolving credit facility (1)	\$	1,591
Availability under PAA senior secured hedged inventory facility (1)		1,343
Less: Amounts outstanding under PAA commercial paper program		(423)
Subtotal		2,511
Cash and cash equivalents		34
Total	\$	2,545

⁽¹⁾ Represents availability prior to giving effect to amounts outstanding under the PAA commercial paper program. Borrowings under the PAA commercial paper program reduce available capacity under the facility.

We believe that we have, and will continue to have, the ability to access the commercial paper program and credit facilities, which we use to meet our short-term cash needs. We believe that our financial position remains strong and we have sufficient liquidity; however, extended disruptions in the financial markets and/or energy price volatility that adversely affect our business may have a materially adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. Also, see "Risk Factors" in Item 1A of our 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K for further discussion regarding risks that may impact our liquidity and capital resources. Usage of the credit facilities, which provide the backstop for the commercial paper program, is subject to ongoing compliance with covenants. As of September 30, 2014, we were in compliance with all such covenants.

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

For a comprehensive discussion of the primary drivers of cash flow from operating activities, including the impact of varying market conditions and the timing of settlement of our derivative activities, see "Liquidity and Capital Resources-Cash Flow from Operating Activities" under Item 7 of our 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

41

Table of Contents

Net cash provided by operating activities for the first nine months of 2014 was approximately \$1.3 billion, primarily resulting from earnings from our operations. Net cash provided by operating activities for the first nine months of 2013 of approximately \$1.6 billion also resulted primarily from earnings from our operations. In addition, we decreased the amount of our inventory during the first nine months of 2013, primarily due to the sale of crude oil inventory that had been stored during the contango market. This decrease in crude oil inventory was partially offset by an increase in NGL inventory as we began to increase inventory levels in preparation for end users' increased demand for product used for heating during the peak heating season of November through March. The net proceeds received from liquidation of our crude oil inventory during this period was used to repay borrowings under our credit facilities or commercial paper program and favorably impacted our cash flow from operating activities.

Acquisitions and Capital Expenditures

In addition to operating needs discussed above, we also use cash for acquisition activities and internal growth projects. We have made and will continue to make capital expenditures for acquisitions, expansion capital and maintenance capital.

2014 Capital Expansion Projects. See "—Acquisitions and Internal Growth Projects" for detail of our projected capital expenditures for the year ending December 31, 2014. We expect the majority of funding for our remaining 2014 capital program will continue to be provided by borrowings under our commercial paper program, our credit facilities and cash flow in excess of partnership distributions, as well as through our access to the capital markets for equity and debt as we deem necessary.

Acquisitions. The price of acquisitions includes cash paid, assumed liabilities and net working capital items. Because of the non-cash items included in the total price of the acquisition and the timing of certain cash payments, the net cash paid may differ significantly from the total price of the acquisitions completed during the period. Historically, we have financed acquisitions primarily with cash generated from operating activities and the financing activities discussed below.

As of November 5, 2014, we entered into a definitive purchase and sale agreement with Oxy that provides for our purchase of Oxy's 50% interest in BridgeTex for \$1.075 billion. See Note 14 to our condensed consolidated financial statements for details of this potential acquisition, including discussion of conditions precedent to closing. We intend to initially use borrowings under our commercial paper program to fund this acquisition. On a long-term basis, we intend to follow our financial strategy by funding at least 55% of the acquisition with equity and cash flow in excess of distributions and the remaining amount with long-term debt.

Equity and Debt Financing Activities

Our financing activities primarily relate to funding acquisitions, internal capital expansion projects and refinancing our debt maturities, as well as short-term working capital and hedged inventory borrowings related to our NGL business and contango market activities. Our financing activities have primarily consisted of equity offerings, senior notes offerings and borrowings and repayments under our commercial paper program or credit facilities, as well as payment of distributions to our unitholders and general partner.

Registration Statements. We periodically access the capital markets for both equity and debt financing. We have filed with the SEC a universal shelf registration statement that, subject to effectiveness at the time of use, allows us to issue up to an aggregate of \$2.0 billion of debt or equity securities ("Traditional Shelf"). All issuances of equity securities associated with our continuous offering program, as discussed further below, have been issued pursuant to the Traditional Shelf. At September 30, 2014, we had approximately \$809 million of unsold securities available under the Traditional Shelf. We also have access to a universal shelf registration statement ("WKSI Shelf"), which provides us with the ability to offer and sell an unlimited amount of debt and equity securities via an underwritten offering, subject to market conditions and our capital needs.

Continuous Offering Program. In August 2014, we entered into an equity distribution agreement with several financial institutions pursuant to which we may offer and sell, through sales agents, common units representing limited partner interests having an aggregate offering price of up to \$900 million. During the nine months ended September 30, 2014, we issued an aggregate of approximately 11.8 million common units under our continuous offering program, generating proceeds of \$669 million, including our general partner's proportionate capital contribution of \$14 million, net of \$7 million of commissions to our sales agents. The net proceeds from sales were used for general partnership purposes.

Credit Agreements, Commercial Paper Program and Indentures. Our credit agreements (which impact our ability to access our commercial paper program because they provide the backstop that supports our short-term credit ratings) and the indentures governing our senior notes contain cross-default provisions. A default under our credit agreements would permit the lenders to accelerate the maturity of the outstanding debt. As long as we are in compliance with the provisions in our credit agreements, our ability to make distributions of available cash is not restricted. We were in compliance with the covenants contained in our credit agreements and indentures as of September 30, 2014.

42

Table of Contents

During the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, we had net repayments on our credit agreements and commercial paper program of \$683 million and \$464 million, respectively. The net repayments during both periods resulted primarily from cash flow from operating activities, as well as cash received from our debt and equity activities.

In August 2014, we extended the maturity dates of our senior secured hedged inventory facility and our senior unsecured revolving credit facility by one year through the exercise of the option included in the current credit agreements. Our senior secured hedged inventory facility and our senior unsecured revolving credit facility now mature in August 2017 and August 2019, respectively.

Effective October 20, 2014, the maximum aggregate borrowing capacity under our commercial paper program was increased from \$1.5 billion to \$3.0 billion.

In April 2014, we completed the issuance of \$700 million, 4.70% senior notes due 2044 at a public offering price of 99.734%. Interest payments are due on June 15 and December 15 of each year, commencing on December 15, 2014. We used the net proceeds from this offering of \$691 million, after deducting the underwriting discount and offering expenses, to repay outstanding borrowings under our commercial paper program and for general partnership purposes.

In September 2014, we completed the issuance of \$750 million, 3.60% senior notes due 2024 at a public offering price of 99.842%. Interest payments are due on May 1 and November 1 of each year, commencing on May 1, 2015. We used the net proceeds from this offering of \$743 million, after deducting the underwriting discount and offering expenses, to repay outstanding borrowings under our commercial paper program and for general partnership purposes.

Our \$150 million, 5.25% senior notes will mature in June 2015, and our \$400 million, 3.95% senior notes will mature in September 2015. We intend to use borrowings under our commercial paper program to repay these senior notes when they mature.

Distributions Paid to Our Unitholders, General Partner and Noncontrolling Interests

Distributions to our unitholders and general partner. We distribute 100% of our available cash within 45 days after the end of each quarter to unitholders of record and to our general partner. Available cash is generally defined as all of our cash and cash equivalents on hand at the end of each quarter less reserves established in the discretion of our general partner for future requirements. On November 14, 2014 we will pay a distribution of \$0.6600 per limited partner unit, which represents a 10.0% increase over the distribution we paid in November 2013. See Note 8 to our condensed consolidated financial statements for details of distributions paid. Also, see Item 5. "Market for Registrant's Common Units, Related Unitholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities—Cash Distribution Policy" included in our 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional discussion on distributions.

Distributions to noncontrolling interests. We paid \$2 million and \$37 million for distributions to noncontrolling interests during the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The decrease in amounts paid is due to our completion of the purchase of all of the noncontrolling interests in PNG on December 31, 2013.

We believe that we have sufficient liquid assets, cash flow from operating activities and borrowing capacity under our credit agreements to meet our financial commitments, debt service obligations, contingencies and anticipated capital expenditures. We are, however, subject to business and operational risks that could adversely affect our cash flow. A prolonged material decrease in our cash flows would likely produce an adverse effect on our borrowing capacity.

Contingencies

For a discussion of contingencies that may impact us, see Note 11 to our condensed consolidated financial statements.

Commitments

Contractual Obligations. In the ordinary course of doing business, we purchase crude oil and NGL from third parties under contracts, the majority of which range in term from thirty-day evergreen to five years with a limited number of contracts extending up to approximately ten years. We establish a margin for these purchases by entering into various types of physical and financial sale and exchange transactions through which we seek to maintain a position that is substantially balanced between purchases on the one hand and sales and future delivery obligations on the other. In addition, we enter into similar contractual obligations in conjunction with our natural gas operations. The table below includes purchase obligations related to these activities. Where applicable, the amounts presented represent the net obligations associated with our counterparties (including giving effect to netting buy/sell contracts and those subject to a net settlement arrangement). We do not expect to use a significant amount of internal capital to meet these

43

Table of Contents

obligations, as the obligations will be funded by corresponding sales to entities that we deem creditworthy or who have provided credit support we consider adequate.

The following table includes our best estimate of the amount and timing of these payments as well as others due under the specified contractual obligations as of September 30, 2014 (in millions):

	Remainder of 2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	2019 and Thereafter	Total
Long-term debt, including current		,					
maturities and related interest							
payments ⁽¹⁾	\$ 103	\$ 954	\$ 560	\$ 755	\$ 928	\$ 9,798	\$ 13,098
Leases (2)	41	148	140	116	93	419	957
Other obligations (3)	79	127	93	64	45	213	621
Subtotal	223	1,229	793	935	1,066	10,430	14,676
Crude oil, natural gas, NGL and other							
purchases (4)	4,360	7,584	6,497	4,987	2,909	8,215	34,552
Total	\$ 4,583	\$ 8,813	\$ 7,290	\$ 5,922	\$ 3,975	\$ 18,645	\$ 49,228

- Includes debt service payments, interest payments due on senior notes and the commitment fee on assumed available capacity under the PAA revolving credit facilities. Although there may be short-term borrowings under the PAA revolving credit facilities and commercial paper program, we historically repay and borrow at varying amounts. As such, we have included only the maximum commitment fee (as if no short-term borrowings were outstanding on the facilities or commercial paper program) in the amounts above.
- (2) Leases are primarily for (i) surface rentals, (ii) office rent, (iii) pipeline assets and (iv) trucks, trailers and railcars.
- Includes (i) other long-term liabilities, (ii) storage, processing and transportation agreements and (iii) commitments related to our capital expansion projects, including projected contributions for our share of the capital spending of our equity-method investments. Excludes a non-current liability of \$2 million related to derivative activity included in Crude oil, natural gas, NGL and other purchases.
- (4) Amounts are primarily based on estimated volumes and market prices based on average activity during September 2014. The actual physical volume purchased and actual settlement prices will vary from the assumptions used in the table. Uncertainties involved in these estimates include levels of production at the wellhead, weather conditions, changes in market prices and other conditions beyond our control.

Letters of Credit. In connection with supply and logistics activities, we provide certain suppliers with irrevocable standby letters of credit to secure our obligation for the purchase of crude oil, NGL and natural gas. Additionally, we issue letters of credit to support insurance programs and construction activities. At September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, we had outstanding letters of credit of \$66 million and \$41 million, respectively.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements as defined by Item 303 of Regulation S-K.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2 to our condensed consolidated financial statements.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

For additional discussion regarding our critical accounting policies and estimates, see "Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates" under Item 7 of our 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

44

Table of Contents

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

All statements included in this report, other than statements of historical fact, are forward-looking statements, including but not limited to statements incorporating the words "anticipate," "believe," "estimate," "expect," "plan," "intend" and "forecast," as well as similar expressions and statements regarding our business strategy, plans and objectives for future operations. The absence of such words, expressions or statements, however, does not mean that the statements are not forward-looking. Any such forward-looking statements reflect our current views with respect to future events, based on what we believe to be reasonable assumptions. Certain factors could cause actual results or outcomes to differ materially from the results or outcomes anticipated in the forward-looking statements. The most important of these factors include, but are not limited to:

- failure to implement or capitalize, or delays in implementing or capitalizing, on planned internal growth projects;
- · unanticipated changes in crude oil market structure, grade differentials and volatility (or lack thereof);
- · environmental liabilities or events that are not covered by an indemnity, insurance or existing reserves;
- · declines in the volume of crude oil, refined product and NGL shipped, processed, purchased, stored, fractionated and/or gathered at or through the use of our facilities, whether due to declines in production from existing oil and gas reserves, failure to develop or slowdown in the development of additional oil and gas reserves or other factors;
- fluctuations in refinery capacity in areas supplied by our mainlines and other factors affecting demand for various grades of crude oil, refined products and natural gas and resulting changes in pricing conditions or transportation throughput requirements;
- the occurrence of a natural disaster, catastrophe, terrorist attack or other event, including attacks on our electronic and computer systems;
- · weather interference with business operations or project construction, including the impact of extreme weather events or conditions;
- tightened capital markets or other factors that increase our cost of capital or limit our access to capital;
- · maintenance of our credit rating and ability to receive open credit from our suppliers and trade counterparties;
- continued creditworthiness of, and performance by, our counterparties, including financial institutions and trading companies with which we do
- the currency exchange rate of the Canadian dollar;
- the availability of, and our ability to consummate, acquisition or combination opportunities;
- the successful integration and future performance of acquired assets or businesses and the risks associated with operating in lines of business that are distinct and separate from our historical operations;

- · shortages or cost increases of supplies, materials or labor;
- · the effectiveness of our risk management activities;
- our ability to obtain debt or equity financing on satisfactory terms to fund additional acquisitions, expansion projects, working capital requirements and the repayment or refinancing of indebtedness;
- · the impact of current and future laws, rulings, governmental regulations, accounting standards and statements, and related interpretations;
- · non-utilization of our assets and facilities;
- the effects of competition;
- · increased costs or lack of availability of insurance;

45

Table of Contents

- · fluctuations in the debt and equity markets, including the price of our units at the time of vesting under our long-term incentive plans;
- · risks related to the development and operation of our facilities, including our ability to satisfy our contractual obligations to our customers at our facilities;
- · factors affecting demand for natural gas and natural gas storage services and rates;
- · general economic, market or business conditions and the amplification of other risks caused by volatile financial markets, capital constraints and pervasive liquidity concerns; and
- other factors and uncertainties inherent in the transportation, storage, terminalling and marketing of crude oil and refined products, as well as in the storage of natural gas and the processing, transportation, fractionation, storage and marketing of natural gas liquids.

Other factors described herein, as well as factors that are unknown or unpredictable, could also have a material adverse effect on future results. Please read "Risk Factors" discussed in Item 1A of our 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K. Except as required by applicable securities laws, we do not intend to update these forward-looking statements and information.

Item 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to various market risks, including (i) commodity price risk, (ii) interest rate risk and (iii) currency exchange rate risk. We use various derivative instruments to manage such risks and, in certain circumstances, to realize incremental margin during volatile market conditions. Our risk management policies and procedures are designed to help ensure that our hedging activities address our risks by monitoring our exchange-cleared and overthe-counter positions, as well as physical volumes, grades, locations, delivery schedules and storage capacity. We have a risk management function that has direct responsibility and authority for our risk policies, related controls around commercial activities and certain aspects of corporate risk management. Our risk management function also approves all new risk management strategies through a formal process. The following discussion addresses each category of risk.

Commodity Price Risk

We use derivative instruments to hedge commodity price risk associated with the following commodities:

· Crude oil and refined products

We utilize crude oil and refined products derivatives to hedge commodity price risk inherent in our Supply and Logistics and Transportation segments. Our objectives for these derivatives include hedging anticipated purchases and sales, stored inventory, and storage capacity utilization. We manage these exposures with various instruments including exchange-traded and over-the-counter futures, forwards, swaps and options.

· Natural gas

We utilize natural gas derivatives to hedge commodity price risk inherent in our Supply and Logistics and Facilities segments. Our objectives for these derivatives include hedging anticipated purchases and sales and managing our anticipated base gas requirements. We manage these exposures with various instruments including exchange-traded futures, swaps and options.

· NGL

We utilize NGL derivatives, primarily butane and propane derivatives, to hedge commodity price risk inherent in our Supply and Logistics segment. Our objectives for these derivatives include hedging anticipated purchases and sales. We manage these exposures with various instruments including exchange-traded and over-the-counter futures, forwards, swaps and options.

See Note 10 to our condensed consolidated financial statements for further discussion regarding our hedging strategies and objectives.

Table of Contents

Our policy is to (i) purchase only product for which we have a market, (ii) hedge our purchase and sales contracts so that price fluctuations do not materially affect our operating income and (iii) not acquire and hold physical inventory or other derivative instruments for the purpose of speculating on outright commodity price changes, as these activities could expose us to significant losses.

The fair value of our commodity derivatives and the change in fair value as of September 30, 2014 that would be expected from a 10% price increase or decrease is shown in the table below (in millions):

	Fai	ir Value	Effect of 10% Price Increase			Effect of 10% Price Decrease		
Crude oil and related products	\$	7	\$	32	\$	(27)		
Natural gas		(2)	\$	1	\$	(1)		
NGL and other		26	\$	(69)	\$	69		
Total fair value	\$	31						

The fair values presented in the table above reflect the sensitivity of the derivative instruments only and do not include the effect of the underlying hedged commodity. Price-risk sensitivities were calculated by assuming an across-the-board 10% increase or decrease in price regardless of term or historical relationships between the contractual price of the instruments and the underlying commodity price. In the event of an actual 10% change in near-term commodity prices, the fair value of our derivative portfolio would typically change less than that shown in the table as changes in near-term prices are not typically mirrored in delivery months further out.

Interest Rate Risk

Our use of variable rate debt and any forecasted issuances of fixed rate debt expose us to interest rate risk. Therefore, from time to time, we use interest rate derivatives to hedge interest rate risk associated with anticipated debt issuances and, in certain cases, outstanding debt instruments. All of our senior notes are fixed rate notes and thus are not subject to interest rate risk. The majority of our variable rate debt at September 30, 2014, \$423 million, is subject to interest rate re-sets, which range from one day to two weeks. The average interest rate of approximately 0.3% is based upon rates in effect during the nine months ended September 30, 2014. The fair value of our interest rate derivatives is a liability of \$15 million as of September 30, 2014. A 10% increase in the forward LIBOR curve as of September 30, 2014 would result in an increase of \$17 million to the fair value of our interest rate derivatives. A 10% decrease in the forward LIBOR curve as of September 30, 2014 would result in a decrease of \$17 million to the fair value of our interest rate derivatives. See Note 10 to our condensed consolidated financial statements for a discussion of our interest rate risk hedging activities.

Currency Exchange Rate Risk

We use foreign currency derivatives to hedge foreign currency exchange rate risk associated with our exposure to fluctuations in the USD-to-CAD exchange rate. Because a significant portion of our Canadian business is conducted in CAD and, at times, a portion of our debt is denominated in CAD, we use certain financial instruments to minimize the risks of unfavorable changes in exchange rates. These instruments include foreign currency exchange contracts, forwards and options. The fair value of our foreign currency derivatives is a liability of \$10 million as of September 30, 2014. A 10% increase in the exchange rate (USD-to-CAD) would result in a decrease of \$41 million to the fair value of our foreign currency derivatives. A 10% decrease in the exchange rate (USD-to-CAD) would result in an increase of \$42 million to the fair value of our foreign currency derivatives. See Note 10 to our condensed consolidated financial statements for a discussion of our currency exchange rate risk hedging.

Item 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain written disclosure controls and procedures, which we refer to as our "DCP." Our DCP is designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") is (i) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms, and (ii) accumulated and communicated to management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to allow for timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

47

Table of Contents

Applicable SEC rules require an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our DCP. Management, under the supervision and with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our DCP as of the end of the period covered by this report, and has found our DCP to be effective in providing reasonable assurance of the timely recording, processing, summarization and reporting of information, and in accumulation and communication of information to management to allow for timely decisions with regard to required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In addition to the information concerning our DCP, we are required to disclose certain changes in internal control over financial reporting. Although we have made various enhancements to our controls, there have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the period covered by this report that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Certifications

The certifications of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) are filed with this report as Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2. The certifications of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 are furnished with this report as Exhibits 32.1 and 32.2.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. **LEGAL PROCEEDINGS**

The information required by this item is included under the caption "Litigation" in Note 11 to our condensed consolidated financial statements, and is incorporated herein by reference thereto.

RISK FACTORS Item 1A.

For a discussion regarding our risk factors, see Item 1A of our 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K. Those risks and uncertainties are not the only ones facing us and there may be additional matters of which we are unaware or that we currently consider immaterial. All of those risks and uncertainties could adversely affect our business, financial condition and/or results of operations.

UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS Item 2.

None.

DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES Item 3.

None.

MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES Item 4.

None.

OTHER INFORMATION Item 5.

None.

Item 6. **EXHIBITS**

The exhibits listed on the accompanying Exhibit Index are filed or incorporated by reference as part of this report, and such Exhibit Index is incorporated herein by reference.

49

Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

PLAINS ALL AMERICAN PIPELINE, L.P.

By: PAA GP LLC, its general partner PLAINS AAP, L.P., its sole member By:

By: PLAINS ALL AMERICAN GP LLC, its general partner

Date: November 7, 2014

/s/ Greg L. Armstrong By: Greg L. Armstrong, Chairman of the Board,

Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal Executive Officer)

Date: November 7, 2014

/s/ Al Swanson By:

> Al Swanson, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)

Date: November 7, 2014

/s/ Chris Herbold By:

> Chris Herbold, Vice President- Accounting and Chief Accounting Officer (Principal Accounting Officer)

4.4

EXHIBIT INDEX

		EXHIBIT INDEX
3.1	_	Fourth Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Plains All American Pipeline, L.P. dated as of May 17, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 23, 2012).
3.2	_	Amendment No. 1 dated October 1, 2012 to the Fourth Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Plains All American Pipeline, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 2, 2012).
3.3	_	Amendment No. 2 dated December 31, 2013 to the Fourth Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Plains All American Pipeline, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 31, 2013).
3.4	_	Third Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Plains Marketing, L.P. dated as of April 1, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004).
3.5	_	Amendment No. 1 dated December 31, 2010 to the Third Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Plains Marketing, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.9 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010).
3.6	_	Amendment No. 2 dated January 1, 2011 to the Third Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Plains Marketing, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.10 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010).
3.7	_	Amendment No. 3 dated June 30, 2011 to the Third Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Plains Marketing, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.7 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013).
3.8	_	Amendment No. 4 dated January 1, 2013 to the Third Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Plains Marketing, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.8 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013).
3.9	_	Third Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Plains Pipeline, L.P. dated as of April 1, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004).
3.10	_	Amendment No. 1 dated January 1, 2013 to the Third Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Plains Pipeline, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.10 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013).
3.11	_	Sixth Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of Plains All American GP LLC dated October 21, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 25, 2013).
3.12	_	Seventh Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement of Plains AAP, L.P. dated October 21, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 25, 2013).
3.13	_	Amendment No. 1 dated December 31, 2013 to Seventh Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement of Plains AAP, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 31, 2013).
3.14	_	Certificate of Incorporation of PAA Finance Corp (f/k/a Pacific Energy Finance Corporation, successor-by-merger to PAA Finance Corp.) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.10 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006).
3.15	_	Bylaws of PAA Finance Corp (f/k/a Pacific Energy Finance Corporation, successor-by-merger to PAA Finance Corp.) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.11 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006).
		51
Table of Cont	<u>ents</u>	
3.16	_	Limited Liability Company Agreement of PAA GP LLC dated December 28, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 4, 2008).
4.1	_	Indenture dated September 25, 2002 among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp. and Wachovia Bank, National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002).
4.2	_	Fourth Supplemental Indenture (Series A and Series B 5.875% Senior Notes due 2016) dated August 12, 2004 among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., the Subsidiary Guarantors named therein and Wachovia Bank, National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4, File No. 333-121168).
4.3	_	Fifth Supplemental Indenture (Series A and Series B 5.25% Senior Notes due 2015) dated May 27, 2005 among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., the Subsidiary Guarantors named therein and Wachovia Bank, National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 31, 2005).

Sixth Supplemental Indenture (Series A and Series B 6.70% Senior Notes due 2036) dated May 12, 2006 among Plains All American

		Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., the Subsidiary Guarantors named therein and Wachovia Bank, National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 12, 2006).
4.5	_	Ninth Supplemental Indenture (Series A and Series B 6.125% Senior Notes due 2017) dated October 30, 2006 among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., the Subsidiary Guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 30, 2006).
4.6	_	Tenth Supplemental Indenture (Series A and Series B 6.650% Senior Notes due 2037) dated October 30, 2006 among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., the Subsidiary Guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 30, 2006).
4.7	_	Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture (Series A and Series B 6.5% Senior Notes due 2018) dated April 23, 2008 among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., the Subsidiary Guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 23, 2008).
4.8	_	Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture (8.75% Senior Notes due 2019) dated April 20, 2009 among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., the Subsidiary Guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 20, 2009).
4.9	_	Seventeenth Supplemental Indenture (5.75% Senior Notes due 2020) dated September 4, 2009 among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., the Subsidiary Guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 4, 2009).
4.10	_	Eighteenth Supplemental Indenture (3.95% Senior Notes due 2015) dated July 14, 2010 among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., the Subsidiary Guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 13, 2010).
4.11	_	Nineteenth Supplemental Indenture (5.00% Senior Notes due 2021) dated January 14, 2011 among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., the Subsidiary Guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 11, 2011).
4.12	_	Twentieth Supplemental Indenture (3.65% Senior Notes due 2022) dated March 22, 2012 among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 26, 2012).
		52
Table of Con	<u>tents</u>	
Table of Con 4.13	<u>tents</u>	Twenty-First Supplemental Indenture (5.15% Senior Notes due 2042) dated March 22, 2012 among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 26, 2012).
	<u></u>	L.P., PAA Finance Corp and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current
4.13	<u>-</u>	L.P., PAA Finance Corp and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 26, 2012). Twenty-Second Supplemental Indenture (2.85% Senior Notes due 2023) dated December 10, 2012, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee
4.13	<u>-</u>	L.P., PAA Finance Corp and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 26, 2012). Twenty-Second Supplemental Indenture (2.85% Senior Notes due 2023) dated December 10, 2012, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 12, 2012). Twenty-Third Supplemental Indenture (4.30% Senior Notes due 2043) dated December 10, 2012, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to
4.13 4.14 4.15	<u>-</u>	L.P., PAA Finance Corp and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 26, 2012). Twenty-Second Supplemental Indenture (2.85% Senior Notes due 2023) dated December 10, 2012, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 12, 2012). Twenty-Third Supplemental Indenture (4.30% Senior Notes due 2043) dated December 10, 2012, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 12, 2012). Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture (3.85% Senior Notes due 2023) dated August 15, 2013, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
4.13 4.14 4.15 4.16		L.P., PAA Finance Corp and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 26, 2012). Twenty-Second Supplemental Indenture (2.85% Senior Notes due 2023) dated December 10, 2012, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 12, 2012). Twenty-Third Supplemental Indenture (4.30% Senior Notes due 2043) dated December 10, 2012, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 12, 2012). Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture (3.85% Senior Notes due 2023) dated August 15, 2013, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 15, 2013). Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture (4.70% Senior Notes due 2044) dated April 23, 2014, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
4.13 4.14 4.15 4.16 4.17		L.P., PAA Finance Corp and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 26, 2012). Twenty-Second Supplemental Indenture (2.85% Senior Notes due 2023) dated December 10, 2012, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 12, 2012). Twenty-Third Supplemental Indenture (4.30% Senior Notes due 2043) dated December 10, 2012, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 12, 2012). Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture (3.85% Senior Notes due 2023) dated August 15, 2013, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 15, 2013). Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture (4.70% Senior Notes due 2044) dated April 23, 2014, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 29, 2014). Twenty-Sixth Supplemental Indenture (3.60% Senior Notes due 2024) dated September 9, 2014, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 29, 2014).
4.13 4.14 4.15 4.16 4.17		L.P., PAA Finance Corp and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 26, 2012). Twenty-Second Supplemental Indenture (2.85% Senior Notes due 2023) dated December 10, 2012, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 12, 2012). Twenty-Third Supplemental Indenture (4.30% Senior Notes due 2043) dated December 10, 2012, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 12, 2012). Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture (3.85% Senior Notes due 2023) dated August 15, 2013, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 15, 2013). Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture (4.70% Senior Notes due 2044) dated April 23, 2014, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 29, 2014). Twenty-Sixth Supplemental Indenture (3.60% Senior Notes due 2024) dated September 9, 2014, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 11, 2014).
4.13 4.14 4.15 4.16 4.17 4.18		L.P., PAA Finance Corp and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 26, 2012). Twenty-Second Supplemental Indenture (2.85% Senior Notes due 2023) dated December 10, 2012, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 12, 2012). Twenty-Third Supplemental Indenture (4.30% Senior Notes due 2043) dated December 10, 2012, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 12, 2012). Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture (3.85% Senior Notes due 2023) dated August 15, 2013, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 15, 2013). Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture (4.70% Senior Notes due 2044) dated April 23, 2014, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 29, 2014). Twenty-Sixth Supplemental Indenture (3.60% Senior Notes due 2024) dated September 9, 2014, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 11, 2014). Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges
4.13 4.14 4.15 4.16 4.17 4.18 12.1† 31.1†		L.P., PAA Finance Corp and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 26, 2012). Twenty-Second Supplemental Indenture (2.85% Senior Notes due 2023) dated December 10, 2012, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 12, 2012). Twenty-Third Supplemental Indenture (4.30% Senior Notes due 2043) dated December 10, 2012, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 12, 2012). Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture (3.85% Senior Notes due 2023) dated August 15, 2013, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 15, 2013). Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture (4.70% Senior Notes due 2044) dated April 23, 2014, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 29, 2014). Twenty-Sixth Supplemental Indenture (3.60% Senior Notes due 2024) dated September 9, 2014, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 11, 2014). Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a).
4.13 4.14 4.15 4.16 4.17 4.18 12.1† 31.1† 31.2†		L.P., PAA Finance Corp and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 26, 2012). Twenty-Second Supplemental Indenture (2.85% Senior Notes due 2023) dated December 10, 2012, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 12, 2012). Twenty-Third Supplemental Indenture (4.30% Senior Notes due 2043) dated December 10, 2012, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 12, 2012). Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture (3.85% Senior Notes due 2023) dated August 15, 2013, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 15, 2013). Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture (4.70% Senior Notes due 2044) dated April 23, 2014, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 29, 2014). Twenty-Sixth Supplemental Indenture (3.60% Senior Notes due 2024) dated September 9, 2014, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 11, 2014). Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a).
4.13 4.14 4.15 4.16 4.17 4.18 12.1† 31.1† 31.2† 32.1††		L.P., PAA Finance Corp and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 26, 2012). Twenty-Second Supplemental Indenture (2.85% Senior Notes due 2023) dated December 10, 2012, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 12, 2012). Twenty-Third Supplemental Indenture (4.30% Senior Notes due 2043) dated December 10, 2012, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 12, 2012). Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture (3.85% Senior Notes due 2023) dated August 15, 2013, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 15, 2013). Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture (4.70% Senior Notes due 2044) dated April 23, 2014, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 29, 2014). Twenty-Sixth Supplemental Indenture (3.60% Senior Notes due 2024) dated September 9, 2014, by and among Plains All American Pipeline, L.P., PAA Finance Corp., and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 11, 2014). Computation of Frincipal Executive Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a). Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a).

101.SCH†	_	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL†	_	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF†	_	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB†	_	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE†	_	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

[†] Filed herewith.

^{††} Furnished herewith.

STATEMENT OF COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES (in millions, except ratio data)

	Nine Months Ended September 30,			Year Ended December 31,									
		2014		2013		2012		2011		2010		2009	
EARNINGS (1)													
Pre-tax income from continuing operations before													
noncontrolling interest and income from equity													
investees	\$	1,013	\$	1,426	\$	1,143	\$	1,026	\$	510	\$	572	
add: Fixed charges		332		424		380		328		321		283	
add: Distributed income of equity investees		74		55		40		23		9		7	
add: Amortization of capitalized interest		3		3		2		2		1		1	
less: Capitalized interest		(33)		(38)		(36)		(25)		(16)		(12)	
Total Earnings	\$	1,389	\$	1,870	\$	1,529	\$	1,354	\$	825	\$	851	
FIXED CHARGES (1)													
Interest expensed and capitalized (2)	\$	290	\$	371	\$	336	\$	298	\$	281	\$	247	
Amortization of debt expense		7		10		10		10		8		7	
Portion of rent expense related to interest (33.33%)		35		43		34		20		32		29	
Total Fixed Charges	\$	332	\$	424	\$	380	\$	328	\$	321	\$	283	
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES (3)		4.18x		4.41x		4.03x		4.13x		2.57x		3.00x	

For purposes of computing the ratio of earnings to fixed charges, "earnings" consists of pre-tax income from continuing operations before income from equity investees plus fixed charges (excluding capitalized interest), distributed income of equity investees and amortization of capitalized interest. "Fixed charges" represents interest incurred (whether expensed or capitalized), amortization of debt expense (including discounts and premiums relating to indebtedness) and the portion of rental expense on leases deemed to be the equivalent of interest.

Includes interest costs attributable to borrowings for hedged inventory purchases of \$11 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and \$30 million, \$12 million, \$20 million, \$17 million and \$11 million for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

⁽³⁾ Ratios may not recalculate due to rounding.

CERTIFICATION

I, Greg L. Armstrong, certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Plains All American Pipeline, L.P.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
- (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
- (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
- (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
- (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
- (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
- (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 7, 2014

/s/ Greg L. Armstrong

Greg L. Armstrong
Chief Executive Officer

CERTIFICATION

I, Al Swanson, certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Plains All American Pipeline, L.P.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
- (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
- (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
- (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
- (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
- (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
- (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 7, 2014

/s/ Al Swanson
Al Swanson
Chief Financial Officer

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF PLAINS ALL AMERICAN PIPELINE, L.P. PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. 1350

- I, Greg L. Armstrong, Chief Executive Officer of Plains All American Pipeline, L.P. (the "Company"), hereby certify that:
- (i) the accompanying report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2014 and filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report") by the Company fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
- (ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Greg L. Armstrong

Name: Greg L. Armstrong Date: November 7, 2014

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF PLAINS ALL AMERICAN PIPELINE, L.P. PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. 1350

- I, Al Swanson, Chief Financial Officer of Plains All American Pipeline, L.P. (the "Company"), hereby certify that:
- (i) the accompanying report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2014 and filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report") by the Company fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
- (ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Al Swanson

Name: Al Swanson Date: November 7, 2014